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Corporate Information
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Board of Directors
Executive Directors
Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Hung Ying Fung

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman
Leung Wai Cheung
Ku Wing Hong, Eric
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Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
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Financial Highlights
B

Major Financial Indicators and Ratios

ERMBIRE R R

For the year ended 31stMarch HE= A = +—RHILFE

Operating results REXE
Revenue g

Gross profit EH
Operating profit 1 A

Net Profit AL

Per share data srREH
Earnings per share BRAET
Total dividend per share BRLAR S
Net assets per share BREESE
Financial position B AR
Total assets BEMAE

Net assets BEFHE
Financial ratio Bt =
Current ratio (Times) REBNEL R ()
Quick ratio (Times) RB)LL ()
Gross margin (%) FEFNZE(%)

Net gearing ratio (%)

FEERBER(%)

Turnover ratio Ay R
Inventory turnover FEBE
Debtors turnover e AR A5
Creditors turnover FEASBRAE

ERAIEEERLAR - —B—HFFR

% changes

2014 2013 increase (decrease)
—ZT—MF —T—=F Aok i ()
HK$°000 HK$'000 %
FHET FET
603,276 545,887 10.5
110,184 101,281 8.8
10,433 8,909 171
5,331 5,136 3.8
HK cents HK cents %
B4l (Il
0.6 (16.7)
1.0 -
91.1 0.1
HK$°000 HK$'000 %
FHET T
324,559 294,993 10.0
182,430 182,265 0.1
2.4 (12.5)
1.0 (20)
18.6% (0.3%)
5.5% 4.4%
Days %
H
139 (7.9)
43 (11.6)
32 (6.3)

05



Financial Highlights
BB

For the year ended 31st March &= = A=+—H L FE

Revenue by Geographical Segments (by %)
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Revenue by Business Segments (by %)
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CEOQO’s Statement
TR

Financial Results

The performance of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the year under review was improved as the economies in Europe and the
US have become stable. For the financial year ended 31st March 2014,
the Group recorded a turnover of around HK$603 million, representing an
increase of about 10.4% from approximately HK$546 million recorded in
the last year. Gross profit increased by about 8.9% from approximately
HK$101 million in the last year to around HK$110 million in this year,
while the gross profit margin slightly decreased by approximately 0.3% to
around 18.3% from about 18.6% in the last year. The Group's operating
profit maintained at approximately HK$10 million (31st March 2013:
approximately HK$9 million), and the profit attributable to shareholders
was approximately HK$1 million (31st March 2013: approximately HK$1.1
million). This represented earnings per share of around HK$0.005 (about
HK$0.006 as at 31st March 2013). The Board has resolved that subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary
share shall be declared for the year ended 31st March 2014, totalling
HK$1 million to the shareholders whose names appeared on the register
of members of the Company on 19th August 2014. The final dividend, if
approved, is expected to be paid on 28th August 2014.
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CEQO’s Statement
TR

During the year under review, the Group continued to focus on its two
core business operations, namely: (1) the Electronic Trading Business; and
(2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail sales of computer
products and smartphone accessories under the brand of l=iVideoCom
(the “Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer
products and consumer products under the brand of = (the “Computer
Distribution Business”). During the year under review, the Group's turnover
derived from the Electronic Trading Business increased approximately
6.2% to about HK$446 million from approximately HK$420 million in the
last year, whilst the turnover from the Computer Business was recorded
as about HK$157 million, which represented an increase of approximately
25% from about HK$126 million in the last year.

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the Group’s total operating
expenses were approximately HK$102 million, representing an increase
of about 8.5% (31st March 2013: about HK$94 million), among which the
distribution and selling expenses were approximately HK$38 million which
have increased by 5.6% from HK$36 million in the last year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase of sales related costs as a result of
an increase in sales and the number of retail shops. During the year under
review, the general and administrative expenses increased significantly
by about 12.3% to around HK$64 million (31st March 2013: about HK$57
million). While the Group continued to control the headcount in Electronic
Trading Business and Computer Distribution Business, the Group allocated
more resources to Computer Retail Business in Hong Kong Market. As at
31st March 2014, the headcount for Computer Retail Business increased
significantly by about 71% from 24 full-time employees last year to 41 full-
time employees. Among the Group's subsidiaries, South Africa subsidiary
increased the headcount from 113 full-time employees last year by about
12% to 127 full-time employees. Meanwhile, finance cost for the year
increased by about 20% to approximately HK$1.2 million (31st March 2013:
about HK$1 million).

During the year under review, the Group had commissioned market
research on the cosmetic retail business in Hong Kong in order to look for
new business opportunity for the Group and enhance the revenue base for
the shareholders of the Company. In July 2013, the Group set up its first
cosmetic retail shop in Kingswood Ginza of Tin Shui Wai under the brand
name of wishh!" As at 31st March 2014, there were nine cosmetic retail
shops operated by the Group in Hong Kong all under the brand name of
wishh! As it was still in the infant stage, a moderate turnover was
recorded from the Group's cosmetic retail business for the year ended
31st March 2014.
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CEOQO’s Statement
TR

Development Strategy and Outlook

To cope with the trend of online purchase, the Group will enhance the
Company's website and enrich the database. At the same time, the Group
will increase the website traffic by promotion through online channel.

Acquiring agentship of famous components and equipment brand is always
the Group's strategy. Therefore, the Group will continuously look for
potential supplier and increase the Group's agentline. The Group believes
that this strategy can further broaden our customers bases.

The Group will control the operation expenses of several oversea
subsidiaries including Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan. More resources
will be allocated to subsidiaries in South Africa and China as these two
markets have better business growth.

Regarding the Computer Distribution Business, the Group will increase
the product ranges of the Group’s flagship brand MIEC™. Products with
creative and fashion designs will be introduced.

The Group will continuously look for potential location to set up retail
shops for our retail brand [E3VidoCom - Two more retail shops will be set
up in Tin Chak Shopping Centre of Tin Shui Wai and Hau Tak Shopping
Centre of Tseung Kwan O in June and July 2014 respectively. The Group
targets to set up two more retail shops in the next financial year. Due to
the popularity of low cost smartphone, the Group believes that introduction
of low cost smartphone will increase the Group's turnover. Therefore, low
cost smartphone counters will be set up in all of the Group's retail shops.

The Group believes that there are good prospects for the growth of retail
business. Therefore more effort will be allocated to retail business. In the
next financial year, more cosmetic retail shops will be set up in Metro
Town, Metro City Plaza, Hau Tak Shopping Centre of Tseung Kwan O, Tuen
Mun On Ting Commercial Complex, Whampo Garden of Hung Hum, Ma On
Shan Plaza, Tin Chak Shopping Centre of Tin Shui Wai and Wong Tai Sin
Plaza respectively. The Group targets to set up a total of 20 cosmetic retail
shops in Hong Kong in next financial year. The Group will introduce more
Korean brand skin care products which help to enrich the product variety.
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CEQO’s Statement
TR

Appreciation

| would like to thank our management team and all our staff members for
their efforts and significant contributions to the Group during the past
year. In addition, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our
shareholders, institutional investors, customers, bankers and business
partners for their continuous support to and confidence in the Group.

By order of the Board
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl
Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23rd June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B S o

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group continued to focus on its two
core business operations, namely: (1) the Electronic Trading Business; and
(2) the Computer Business which includes (i) the retail sales of computer
products and smartphone accessories under the brand of [ZVideoCom
(the "Computer Retail Business”) and (ii) the distribution of computer
products and consumer products under the brand of = (the “Computer
Distribution Business”). The Electronic Trading Business and the Computer
Business accounted for approximately 74% and 26% respectively of the
Group's total turnover for the year ended 31st March 2014.

By analysis on the two core business operations, the gross profit margin
of the Electronic Trading Business decreased slightly to around 19%
(31st March 2013: about 19.6%), whereas the gross profit margin of the
Computer Business increased slightly to about 16.3% (31st March 2013:
about 15%) for the year ended 31st March 2014.

Electronic Trading Business

Hong Kong

For the year ended 31st March 2014, turnover of the Group's Electronic
Trading Business increased about 6.2% to approximately HK$446 million
from approximately HK$420 million in the last year.

During the year under review, the consumption demand in the European
and the US markets has been improved as a result of the stable European
and the US economies. The Group's customers have re-activated their
production which had been postponed due to the European economic
turmoil and the US economic recession. Moreover, one of the Group’s
suppliers has referred several customers in Southern China to the Group.
This helped to improve the Group’s turnover in Electronic Trading Business.

Meanwhile, the Group has entered into an agency agreement for the
Asian region with RediSem Limited (a provider of power management
semiconductor products) and SemiLEDs Optoelectronics Co., Limited (a
provider of UV LED chips) respectively during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PR i M

Overseas

During the year under review, the business of the Group's overseas
subsidiaries recorded a turnover of approximately HK$111 million (for
the year ended 31st March 2013: about HK$118 million), representing
a decrease of about 5.9%. The decrease was mainly attributed by the
drop of turnover of the Malaysia subsidiary. The turnover of the Malaysia
subsidiary decreased significantly from approximately HK$20 million in the
last year by about 40% to approximately HK$12 million in this year. It was
because one of the Group's customers specializing in smart power meters
postponed the production of its latest model due to the quality issue.

During the year under review, the exchange rate of South African Rand
to Hong Kong dollar has depreciated by about 12.7% as compared with
that of as quoted in last year. Therefore, the growth rate of turnover
of the Group’s South Africa subsidiary was shrunk. The Group’s South
Africa subsidiary recorded the turnover of approximately HK$73 million,
representing a slightly increase of about 1.4% from approximately HK$72
million in the last year.

During the year under review, the subsidiary in South Africa acquired
the business of Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited and AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited in Johannesburg. The Group believes that this
acquisition can strengthen the Group’s customer bases and product lines
which in turn can contribute the Group's turnover.

In terms of geographical segments, the contributions of Hong Kong, Asia-
Pacific region (other than Hong Kong), South Africa, Europe and other
regions accounted for 53%, 26%. 12%, 1% and 2% respectively of the
Group's total turnover during the year under review.

Computer Business

Computer Retail Business

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the Computer Retail Business,
operating under the brand of EVideCm recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$37 million (31st March 2013: approximately HK$26
million). This remarkable increment was mainly attributed by the
continuous expansion of the retail outlets coverage. During the year under
review, three retail shops were set up at Metro Town of Tseung Kwan 0,
Chung Fu Plaza of Tin Shui Wai and Ma On Shan Plaza. In the meantime,
the Group has selected some retail shops and introduced low cost
smartphone to test the market. The responses received by the Group were
positive.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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ENERPAD

AEG

Power supply systems

Computer Distribution Business

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the turnover of APower Holdings
Limited, a subsidiary of the Group carrying on the Computer Distribution
Business, was about HK$111 million, representing an increase of about
12.1% from about HK$99 million in the previous year. The increment was
mainly attributed by the increase in the export volume of flash memory
card, which was the principal business of APower Holdings Limited.
Moreover, the substantial growth of sales of the mobile battery chargers
produced by Samya Technology Co., Limited also contributed to the
turnover of APower Holdings Limited.

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the Group entered into an agency
agreement with OSRAM Prosperity Co., Limited (a provider of lighting
products). Such agency agreement allowed the Group to expand the market
segment in the lighting industry.
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Cosmetic Retail Business

The Group believed that there was good prospect for retail business. After
market research, the Group decided to straddle in the Korean cosmetic
retail business under the brand name of wishh!in July 2013.

During the year under review, the Group has set up cosmetic retail shop
in San Po Kong, Kingswood Ginza and Chung Fu Plaza of Tin Shui Wai,
Fortune City One, Shatin Centre of Shatin, Sheung Shui Centre, Choi Yuen
Plaza of Sheung Shui, Citi Mall of Yuen Long and Lok Fu Plaza of Lok Fu
respectively. A professional team has been set up to operate and promote
cosmetic retail business. A moderate turnover was recorded from the
Group's cosmetic retail business for the year ended 31st March 2014 and it
was classified as sales of other products.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group has a stable financial foundation. As at 31st March 2014, the
Group's cash and bank balances were approximately HK$41 million (as at
31st March 2013: approximately HK$36 million) of which about 32% and
30% were denominated in United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars
respectively. Approximately 18%, 11%, 7%, 1%, and 1% of the balance
of its total cash and bank balances were correspondingly denominated in
Chinese Renminbi, South African Rand, Malaysian Ringgit, New Taiwan
dollars and Singaporean dollars. The Group’s total assets amounted to
approximately HK$325 million (as at 31st March 2013: approximately
HK$295 million). Net assets per share amounted to approximately
HK$0.91 (as at 31st March 2013: approximately HK$0.91). Dividend and
basic earnings per share were approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.005
respectively (as at 31st March 2013: approximately HK$0.01 and HK$0.006
respectively).
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As at 31st March 2014, the Group had banking facilities for overdrafts,
loans and trade finance from several banks totalling approximately HK$88
million (as at 31st March 2013: approximately HK$73 million), with an
unused balance of approximately HK$29 million (as at 31st March 2013:
approximately HK$27 million). The Directors believe that the Group's
existing financial resources are sufficient to fulfill its commitments and
working capital requirements.

Capital Structure

As at 31st March 2014, the total borrowings of the Group were
approximately HK$59 million (as at 31st March 2013: HK$46 million),
which were in the form of short-term bank loans (including short-term
loans and trade finance) for financing the daily business operations and
future development plans. The majority of Group’s bank borrowings as at
31st March 2014 were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. These short-
term loans and trade finance were secured by the Company's corporate
guarantees of around HK$84 million and the leasehold properties in
Singapore (as at 31st March 2013: HK$69 million), with a maturity term
of one to four months, and such short-term loans can be rolled over
afterwards at the Group's discretion.

During the year under review, interest rates for the Group’s borrowings
ranged from 2.21% to 2.96% per annum (for the year ended 31st March
2013:1.90% to 2.91% per annum).

Gearing Ratio

As at 31st March 2014, the Group's gross borrowings, which was
repayable within one year, amounted to approximately HK$59 million (as
at 31st March 2013: approximately HK$46 million). After deducting cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$41 million, the Group's net
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$18 million (as at 31st March
2013: approximately HK$10 million). Total equity as at 31st March 2014
was approximately HK$182 million (as at 31st March 2013: approximately
HK$182 million). As a result, the Group’s net gearing ratio, based on net
borrowings to total equity, increased to 9.9% (as at 31st March 2013:
5.5%).

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
Most of the Group's transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Chinese Renminbi and United States dollars. Given that the exchange rate
of Hong Kong dollars against Chinese Renminbi has been and is likely to
be under control and that the Hong Kong Government’s policy of linking
the Hong Kong dollars to the United States dollars remains in effect, the
Directors consider that the risk facing by the Group on foreign exchange
will remain minimal and no hedging or other alternative measures have
been undertaken by the Group. As at 31st March 2014, the Group had no
significant risk exposure pertaining to foreign exchange contracts, interest
rates, currency swaps, or other financial derivatives.
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Charges on Assets

As at 31st March 2014, the properties with carrying value of approximately
HK$20 million have been pledged to secure the general banking facilities
granted to the Group's Singapore subsidiary.

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st March 2014, the Group had total outstanding operating lease
commitments of approximately HK$43 million (as at 31st March 2013:
HK$11 million). In view of the Group's high level of liquid funds, it is
expected that the Group will be able to fulfill all these commitments
without any difficulty. The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31st
March 2014,

Employment, Training and Remuneration Policy
As at 31st March 2014, the Group had a total of 429 full-time employees
inclusive of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas subsidiaries. The Group
has developed our human resources policies and procedures based on
the performance, merits and market conditions. Discretionary bonus will
be distributed based on performance of the Group as well as individual
performances.

Social Responsibilities

The Group is keen on contributing the society, nurturing the next
generation and protecting the environment. During the year under review,
the Group has continuously to employ full-time employees with impaired
hearing, and their ability has been proved in workplace. The Group has also
provided placement opportunities to local tertiary institutions. At the same
time, the Group was awarded by the Class of Good Wastewi$e Label of the
Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence (HKAEE) and also “Caring
Company” achievement for 5 consecutive years.

MOBICON
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Executive Directors

Hung Kim Fung, Measure,

aged 53, Executive Director

was the Group's founder and is the Chairman of the Company
(“Chairman”). He obtained an Honorary Doctorate in Business
Administration from Newport University in the United States. Dr. Hung
has more than 33 years of experience in the electronics industry, and he is
responsible for the Group's strategic planning and corporate policies.

Since 1995, Dr. Hung has been a member of the Executive Committee of
the Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association Limited (“HKEIA”) and
was nominated as Vice-chairman of the HKEIA (2011-2015). He has served
as Vice President of CEO Club (2009-2014).

Dr. Hung has been devoted on company development and cultivating
students’ entrepreneurship throughout the years. Besides, he has
also spent huge efforts on public communication and local education
development. He was appointed by City University of Hong Kong as
Honorary Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Industry Co-operative
Education Centre. He has served as Advisory Committee for the
Department of Industrial and Systems Engineering of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, member of the Electronics and Telecommunications
Training Board of Vocational Training Council (2013-2015) and Mentor
of Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation Mentorship
Programme. He also serves as the School Manager of De La Salle
Secondary School, NT.

Yeung Man Yi, Beryl,

aged 52, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is the Deputy Chairman (“Deputy
Chairman”) and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the Company. With
more than 33 years of experience in the electronics industry, Ms. Yeung is
responsible for the Group’s finance, administration and internal control.

In 2004, Ms. Yeung was also made an Associate (Electronics Industry) by
The Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong, in recognition of her
professional knowledge in electronics, extensive application of existing
and new technology, achievements and contributions to the industry. In
2006, Ms. Yeung obtained the Master Degree of Business Administration
from Lincoln University.

Ms. Yeung has actively supported tertiary educational activities. Whilst
serving as an Industrial Advisor at a course of "Master of Arts in Operations
and Supply Chain Management’ of the City University of Hong Kong in
2006.
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In recognition of her valuable experience and knowledge in the electronics
engineering industry, Ms. Yeung was invited to be the Adjunct Professor
in the Department of Electronic Engineering, City University of Hong Kong
(2013-2014) and Advisory Committee (2010-2014) of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Electronics/Electrical Appliances Industries. She is
the wife of the Group Chairman, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Hung Ying Fung,

aged 50, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
He is responsible for the management and the computer retail business
development of the Group and has over 28 years of experience in the
electronics industry. In 2001, he was nominated as the director of the
Chamber of Hong Kong Computer Industry Company Limited. Mr. Hung
was nominated as an executive member of the Sham Shui Po District
Commerce & Industrial Liaison Committee (2014-2015) and the CLP Local
Customer Advisory Committee of Sham Shui Po District Tenure of Office
(2014-2015). He is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix,

aged 51, Executive Director

was the founder of the Group and is an executive director of the Company.
Mr. Yeung is responsible for the management and business development
of the retail business in PRC of the Group. He has over 30 years of
experience in the electronics and computer industry. He is the brother of
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl.

Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho,

aged 56, Executive Director

is an executive director of the Company (starting from 24th June 2013) and
is the director of six subsidiaries of the Company, namely AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, Mantech
Electronics (Proprietary) Limited (“Mantech Electronics”), Mobicon
International Limited, Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and Suntronika
(Proprietary) Limited. Mr. Moutinho has been appointed as an advisor to
the Portuguese diaspora by Portuguese World Council since February 2014.

Mr. Moutinho is responsible for the business operations of the Group
in South Africa. He joined the Group in December 2001 when Mantech
Electronics was acquired by the Group. Mr. Moutinho obtained his national
certificate in Electronics from the University of Johannesburg (formerly
known as Technikon Witwatersrand) in 1982 and matriculated at the
Johannesburg Technical College in South Africa in 1977. He is a qualified
electrical technician engineer.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Charles E. Chapman,

aged 65, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the independent non-executive director of AV Concept Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 595) which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He was executive director of Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association
Limited ("HKEIA") and managing director of the HKEIA's subsidiary
publishing company, the Hong Kong Electronics Promotions Ltd. from May
1988 to June 2007 when he retired. Currently Mr. Chapman is a senior
industry consultant for a number of overseas-based trade fair organizers.
Prior to joining HKEIA, Mr. Chapman worked for 12 years as economics
editor at the Hong Kong Trade Development Council and for 8 years as
business editor in a local English-language newspaper.

Leung Wai Cheung,

aged 49, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He was the
independent non-executive director of China Netcom Technology Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 8071) and Sino Prosper (Group) Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 766), both of which being companies listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, until 1st November 2012 and 6th November 2012
respectively. Dr. Leung is a qualified accountant and chartered secretary
with over 25 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. He graduated from Curtin University with a Bachelor of
Commerce Degree majoring in accounting and subsequently obtained
a postgraduate diploma in corporate administration, a Master degree
of Professional Accounting from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
a Doctor degree of Philosophy in Management from the Empresarial
University of Costa Rica and a Doctor degree of Education in Educational
Management from Bulacan State University. He is an associate member
of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA
Australia, the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales,
the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, the Hong Kong
Institute Secretaries and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Apart from
a professor of European University, Dr. Leung is also a visiting lecturer
of the Open University of Hong Kong (LiPACE) and Hong Kong University
(SPACE).
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Ku Wing Hong, Eric,

aged 58, Independent Non-executive Director

is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is currently
the principal of De La Salle Secondary School, NT in Hong Kong. He
obtained an Honorary Bachelor's Degree in Social Sciences and a Diploma
in Education from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1979 and 1985
respectively. He has served in De La Salle Secondary School, NT since
1981 and was appointed as the acting principal in September 2004. He was
then appointed as the principal of the school in June 2007 after attaining
his Certification for Principalship. Mr. Ku is the vice-chairman of the Tai Po
& North District Secondary Schools Area Committee of Hong Kong Schools
Sports Federation (the “Federation”) and the chairman in the Federation’s
Tai Po & North District Competition Committee. He is also the vice-
chairman of the North District Secondary School Principals’ Association.

Senior Management

Wan Lam Keng,

aged 51, Senior Management

is the senior business manager of the Group. Ms. Wan joined the Group
in June 1988 and has over 26 years of experience in retailing and trading
business. She is responsible for the Group’s Urgent Requirement Service
division. She is the wife of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix.

Lee Yiu Kong, Winson,

aged 53, Senior Management

is the general sales manager of the Group. Before he joined the Group
in June 1991, he had over 12 years of experience in customer service in
the banking industry. He is responsible for the sales and marketing of the
electronic components of the Group.

Ho Siu Wan,

aged 46, Senior Management

is the financial controller of the Group and the company secretary of
the Company. She is responsible for the financial management as well
as human resources functions of the Group. Ms. Ho holds a professional
diploma in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. She joined the Group in May 2001 and has over 24 years of
experience in auditing, accounting, taxation and financial management.
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Tsang Ka Man,

aged 45, Senior Management

is the sales & marketing director of Milliard Devices Limited. Mr. Tsang
graduated from the University of Sunderland with a Bachelor (Hons)
Degree in Digital Systems and Electronic Engineering. Before he joined the
Group in September 2001, he worked for a number of integrated circuit,
semiconductors (Brand from Japan, Korea, etc), sensors, radio frequency
& passive components companies as sales and marketing manager. He
is responsible for sales and marketing activities of integrated circuit,
sensors, radio frequency integrated circuit & passive components (i.e.
relay, resistors, capacitors & inductors...) of the Company in both Hong
Kong, China, Taiwan & South-East Asia market.

Lam Sun Hung,

aged 45, Senior Management

is the marketing director of APower Holdings Limited. He obtained a
Master of Business Administration from University of Wales (Newport).
He has engaged in the IT industry for more than 28 years and has in depth
understanding on the market trend and market demand. He has earned
rich and solid experiences in the operation of products agentship and
distribution. He has taken part in the industry of environmental protection
and energy conservation and to lead the Group into the environmental
protection market. Mr. Lam joined the Group in April 2002 and is focusing
on the development of agent line product and solution services business.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Board is committed to principles of corporate governance practices
and procedures. The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize transparency, accountability and independence.

The Company has complied with the Code Provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year under review except for the
following deviations:

According to the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company (“INEDs") are not
appointed for specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company under Bye-law
111 of the Company's Bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.2 of the Code provides that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. However, the Bye-laws of the
Company provides that the Chairman and the Deputy Chairman will not be
subject to retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire. As continuation of the services of the
Chairman and the Deputy Chairman is a key factor to the successful
implementation of any long term business plan, the Board believes
that present arrangement is most beneficial to the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code on terms no
less exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Upon specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors have confirmed that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Securities Dealing Code throughout the year under
review.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to indemnify
the directors and senior management against any losses, claims, damages,
liabilities, expenses and any proceedings brought against them, arising
from the performance of his/her duties as director or senior management
(as the case may be) of the Company. The current policy has been renewed
and shall be under constant review.
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Board of Directors

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective of enhancing share
value.

The Board comprises a total of eight directors, with five executive
directors, namely Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman), Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and CEQ), Mr. Hung Ying Fung, Mr. Yeung Kwok
Leung, Allix and Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho and three INEDs,
namely, Mr. Charles E. Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing
Hong, Eric. One of the INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise, which is required
by the Listing Rules. Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl is the wife of Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure. She is also the sister of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix. Mr.
Hung Ying Fung is the brother of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all INEDs meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board composition will be reviewed regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Group. To enhance the standard of corporate
governance, the Company also adopted a board diversity policy on 29th
August 2013. The directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 17
to 20 of this annual report.

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for the approval and
monitoring of the Group’s long term and short term investments, business
strategies and annual budgets, evaluating the performance of the Group
and oversight of the management. One of the important roles of the
Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board such that the Board acts
in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the
Board works effectively and discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed and approved by the Board before
execution. All directors have been consulted about any matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each Board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks
to ensure that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at Board
meetings and adequate and reliable information is given to the Board in a
timely manner.
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The CEQ is responsible for the implementation of corporate goals, business
strategies and policies resolved by the Board from time to time. The
CEO assumes full accountability to the Board in respect of the Group's
operations.

The Company Secretary shall convene a Board meeting on the request of
any one director and 14 days’ notice of Board meeting will be given to all
directors. The Company Secretary shall circulate the Board papers not less
than three days before the Board meeting to enable the directors to clearly
understand and make informed decisions on all matters to be raised,
discussed and resolved at the Board meetings. The Company Secretary
who is also the financial controller of the Group shall attend all regular
Board meetings to advise on corporate governance, statutory compliance,
accounting and financial matters when necessary. The directors shall have
full access to information on the Group and arrangement has been in place
to enable directors to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary. The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings.

Four regular Board meetings of the year under review were scheduled
in advance at approximately quarterly intervals, the other two Board
meetings had been convened in relation to the appointment of one
executive director and the discussion of two continuing connected
transactions which were required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
The directors can attend meetings in person or by means of a conference
telephone or other communications facilities in accordance with Bye-law
136 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

The senior management is responsible for the daily operations of the Group
under the leadership of the Board. To this end, the senior management has
to implement, follow up and monitor the business plans, internal control
and corporate governance practices developed by the Board.

Directors’ Training

Every director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on the Group’s performance and financial position.

During the year, the Company had arranged an in-house training session
on the Model Code for securities transactions under Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules with real life example to directors. In addition, the directors
had attended external courses, conferences and luncheons organised by
various organisations.
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The directors also reviewed the monthly business and financial
updates and other reading materials provided to them concerning latest
developments in corporate governance practices and relevant legal and
regulatory developments. A summary of trainings received by directors
during the period between 1st April 2013 and 31st March 2014 based on
the records provided by the directors is as follows:

EENENARSFERR S AR RMBOER
AR ARHMEBEEEEATERMBMER
MERBRHFBERNOHNEER - REBRRH 2T
B BER _F-FOA-AE_FT-OF=
A=1T—BHMEZEIZHmENT

Type of trainings

EIER
Seminars
and/or Corporate
In-house conferences events
training and/or forums or visits Reading
BERS
HEER S LEITHR
Name of Director EENE RIS RS Z% RAE M B
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure el v v v v/
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl HEEL L v/ v/ 4 4
Mr. Hung Ying Fung ML v v 4 v
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HEIRR A& v v v v/
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Manuel Arnaldo de v v v v
Moutinho (Note a) Sousa Moutinho%t 4
(Pff5Ta)
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman?%t 4 v v v 4
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFE LT v v 4 v
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric HOKERSTAE v v v v/
Note: B 5E
(a) Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho was appointed as an executive director of (a) Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa MoutinhoZcAER = F —=4F

the Company on 24th June 2013.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

There is no specific term of the appointment of INEDs. However, they are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provision of the Bye-laws
of the Company. This deviates from the Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code
which requires that non-executive directors be appointed for specific terms
subject to rotation and re-election by shareholders. The Board considers
that this current practice is fair and reasonable and does not intend to
change this practice at the moment.

According to Bye-law 111 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the
directors for the time being (excluding the Chairman and the Deputy
Chairman of the Board) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting. Currently, two directors are subject to retirement by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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According to Bye-law of 117 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members
may, at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a
director at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the purpose of
removing a director shall contain a statement of the intention so to do and
be served on such director not less than 14 days before the meeting and at
such meeting, such director shall be entitled to be heard on the motion for
his/her removal.

Remuneration Committee and Directors’
Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established on
20th February 2006 to assist the board of directors of the Company to
oversee the remuneration packages of and determine the remuneration
structure of the executive directors and senior management of the
Group. Its current members are Dr. Leung Wai Cheung, Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference including the duties of
the Remuneration Committee have been posted on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.

With effect from the fiscal year 2013/2014, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the management bonus package mechanism of executive directors
which provides that the aggregate amount of management bonuses
payable to all directors in respect of any financial year of the Company
shall not exceed (i) 5% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits
of the Group is HK$9 million or above but is less than HK$12 million;
and (i) 10% of the net profits of the Group if the net profits of the Group
is HK$12 million or above. Furthermore, the Remuneration Committee
also approved to delegate the authority to the Chairman of the Group to
determine the distribution level on the management bonus payout to all
executive directors and each executive director shall entitle to not less
than 10% of the aggregate amount of the management bonuses.

On 17th February 2014, the Remuneration Committee resolved that the
management bonus package mechanism of executive directors for the
fiscal year 2014/2015 shall be maintained at same level as that for the
fiscal year 2013/2014.
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The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior management whose names appear in the
“Directors’” and Senior Management's Profile”section for the Year:

TRIHEI EERSREREEN | —H2H
ﬁ%%&%%&éE%EBCﬁiEZM@%EEU :

HK$ Number of persons
BT AE
1,000,001 — 1,500,000

500,001 — 1,000,000

1 —500,000

Total number of persons 48 A £ 10

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 28th
March 2012 to lead the process for the appointment of directors of the
Company. Its current members are Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Mr.
Charles E. Chapman and Dr. Leung Wai Cheung. Dr. Hung is the Chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference including the
responsibilities of the Nomination Committee have been posted on the
Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting. The minutes of the Nomination Committee meeting was tabled to
the Board for noting and for confirm by the Board where appropriate.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 18th April 2001
to assist the Board in providing an independent review of the effectiveness
of the financial reporting process and internal control system of the
Company.

All members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs. One member has
appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and related financial
management expertise as required under the Listing Rules. None of them is
employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or existing auditors of the
Company. The current members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Charles E.
Chapman, Dr. Leung Wai Cheung and Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric. Dr. Leung is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference including the duties of the Audit Committee have
been posted on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange's website.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. The

minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled to the Board for
noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
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During the meetings held in the year under review, the Audit Committee
had performed the following work:

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

reviewed annual results and the financial reports for the year
ended 31st March 2013 and the interim results and the financial
reports for the six months ended 30th September 2013;

reviewed the findings and recommendations of the internal audit
on the operations and performance of the Group;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and ensured the Company to comply with the Listing Rules
and other statutory compliance;

reviewed the effectiveness of internal control system;

reviewed the external auditors’ management letter and management's
response; and

reviewed and recommended for approval to the Board the 2013/2014
audit scope and auditors’ remuneration.

Attendance of Individual Directors
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The attendance of individual directors at the Board, Audit Committee, REBEFERN SEZTHFRESTLEH  THZE
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Annual General EBE&:#%  FHZEEE# ﬁ%é%@@‘*&
Meetings during the year under review is set out in the table below. RRAFERE 2 HNTE o
Number of meetings attended/held in 2013/2014
RZB-Z/-8-I%
HE/BTEERE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Annual
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Name of Director EEnE EZ8e8H ENZESEE FMZESEE REZEEEE RREFAE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure S 6/6 N/ATE A N/ATiE A 1 1/1
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl BoERL 6/6 N/ATE A 171 N/ATRiE 171
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEESAE 5/6 N/ATE A N/ATEA N/ATEF 1
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix BEREE 6/6 N/AT i A N/ATiE A N/ATiE A 1/1
Mr. Manuel Amaldo de Sousa Manuel Arnaldo de 5/6 N/ATEHR N/ATER N/ATiE A 11
Moutinho (Note a) Sousa MoutinhoZt &£
GiE)
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. ChapmanZt & 6/6 4/4 N/ATE A 1 11
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REHET 5/6 4/4 17 1 11
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric BKEEE 6/6 3/4 1 N/ATNE A [
Note: Mz -
(a) Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho was appointed as an executive director of (a) Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho%c AR —F— =4
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Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31st March 2014, the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is set out as
follows:

A% B R T <
HE_Z-—HNF=A=+—HILFE  XNHTE
NEVZH BB ST EEAER QRS a0
T

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered Frie it AR 7% Bt/ ENEA
HK$'000
FHT
Audit services =B R 75 900
Non-audit services — Interim review FEARZ RS — AR 150
1,050

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial #FS5H¥MEMENEIE

Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group.

As at 31st March 2014, the directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the financial statements of the
Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 45 to 46
of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining effective internal control systems
of the Group. The Group's system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, is designed to evaluate the
Group's risk, achieve the division goals and business objectives, maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of financial information for
internal analysis or for publication, comply with relevant legislation and
regulations.

During the year under review, the directors had conducted review of the
effectiveness of the systems of internal control in respect of the financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management function of the
Group.
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Investors Relations and Communications

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board, (ii) updated company news and published announcements of
the Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company and (iii) different means are opened to the shareholders and
investors for communication channel such as (a) by mail to the Company’s
head office at 7/F, New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San
Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong; (b) by telephone at (852) 2397 6628; or (c)
by fax at (852) 2397 0339.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company's affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman. From time to time, the Company Secretary advises
the Board on governance matters and ensures the board procedures,
applicable law, rules and regulations are followed. During the year under
review, the Company Secretary has confirmed that she has complied with
all the qualifications and training requirements under the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ Right

(i) Procedures by which shareholders can convene a
Special General Meeting (“SGM”)
The Board shall, on the requisition in writing of the shareholders of
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company upon
which all calls or other sums then due have been paid, forthwith
proceed to convene a SGM.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after three months from the date of the
original deposit.

(ii)) Procedures for putting forward proposals at General
Meetings (“GM”™)
Shareholders can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at GM. The number of shareholders shall represent not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the GM, or who are
no less than 100 shareholders.
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(iii)

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at the GM. It must also be signed by all of
the shareholders concerned and be deposited to the Company
Secretary at the Company's office in Hong Kong at 7/F., New Trend
Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the GM in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the GM in case of any other requisition.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars
and upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board of Directors to
include the resolution in the agenda for the meeting provided
that the shareholders concerned have deposited a sum of
money reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating the statement
submitted by the shareholders concerned in accordance with the
statutory requirements to all the registered shareholders.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to
the Board in writing with contact information of the requisitionists
and deposited to the Company Secretary at the Company’s office
in Hong Kong at 7/F., New Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road
East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Constitutional Documents
During the year under review, there has no significant change in the
Company's Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31st March 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in the trading and distribution of electronic parts,
components and equipment and computer products, mobile accessories
and other products.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2014 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 47
and 48 respectively.

The directors declared an interim dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary
share, totalling HK$1,000,000, which was paid on 23rd December 2013.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.5 cent
per ordinary share, totalling HK$1,000,000 for the year ended 31st March
2014.

Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 8th August
2014 to 12th August 2014, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to ascertain the right to attend
the annual general meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at its office situated
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 7th August 2014.
The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 18th August
2014 to 19th August 2014, during which period no transfer of shares will
be effected, and the final dividend will be paid on 28th August 2014. In
order to qualify for the final dividend, all completed share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15th August 2014.
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Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

Donations
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$7,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws
and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the
Company's listed shares during the year ended 31st March 2014.

Directors
The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung

Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix

Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho (appointed on 24th June 2013)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman

Dr. Leung Wai Cheung

Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric

Mr. Yeung Kwak Leung, Allix and Mr. Charles E. Chapman are required to

retire by rotation under the Company's bye-laws and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive directors of the Company (except Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure and Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho who did
not enter into any service contract with the Company) has entered into
a service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term of three
years commencing from 1st April 2001, and will continue thereafter until
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party on the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

Share Option Scheme

On 8th August 2003, the Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Share Option Scheme”), pursuant to which the eligible persons may
be granted options to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
upon and subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of the New Share
Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme is in line with current
Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Since the adoption, no options have been granted under the New Share

Option Scheme up to the date of this report. The New Share Option
Scheme expired on 7th August 2013.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities

As at 31st March 2014, the interests and short positions of each director
and chief executive of the Company and his/her associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

(i) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

3 AT AR AR I A B AR R O
Z Wt

R-B-ME=A=+—B  ARASEERT
BB E LA H B A+ AR 7R H AR E
(T BB RIS (B4 RIEIED ) S
XVER) 2 R4 - ARBIRR Y RS - BAUEE
BRARTREES R EGIEIEEE
BRM BERAR - A IRBES R D)
EXVERETRED Bk L HRHITABERTEER
SHEETR((EEFE ) BTAREAATRE
AR B FER AR (B ) 2 s AR
W :

(i) AL 0. 109 7T Z ¥ 8 B

Number of shares

G EE
Long/short Personal Family  Corporate
Name of Director position Interests interests interests Percentage
BEEpnE "R KRR BAER Xk#EzE ARER BotE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Long — 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
HulEiEt e (Note a)
(Mf5a)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Long — 90,000,000 90,000,000 45%
BEEL LT So=) (Note a)
(Mf5Ea)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Long 26,990,000 - 26,990,000 13.50%
HREERE e
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Long — 30,000,000 30,000,000 15%
B BRSE& e (Note b)
(M45EDb)
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho  Long 580,000 - - 0.29%
Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho%c 4 47 2
Notes: Bt 3E -
(a) These shares are held by M2B Holding Limited, a company owned as to (a) I A% 19 FAM2B Holding Limited# B + 224
50% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and the remaining 50% by his wife, AR B =18 T HEH50% - i #4 T~50% 8l
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl. Accordingly, Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and BEZFHEEZLIHES - Bt - BIRE
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were deemed to be interested in 90,000,000 HREEEA - EBEE T RIGHEZ LT
shares of the Company under SFO. Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure and Ms. A 45 18 7 28 22 7]90,000,000 8% f% 15 HE A
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl were in respect of the same interest and duplicated i o AR EE T RIEFELLTHE 2
each other. AR RO R - WEARER -
(b) These shares are held by Bestmark Management Limited, a company (b) 1t 55 % 17 B3 Bestmark Management Limited

owned as to 50% by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix and the remaining 50%
by his wife, Ms. Wan Lam Keng. Accordingly, Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were deemed to be interested in 30,000,000
shares of the Company under SFQ. The interests of Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung,
Allix and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and
duplicated each other.
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

36

Non-voting deferred shares of HK$1.00 each in a
subsidiary — Maxfair Distribution Limited (“Maxfair”)

As at 31st March 2014, each of Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, Mr. Hung Ying Fung and Mr. Yeung Kwok
Leung, Allix had beneficial interests in his/her personal capacity in
the following number of non-voting deferred shares in Maxfair:

P R AT B IR AR B AR R

ZHESR (&)
) MBAFEUREGMAE ([HE
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E@:?—EEEH:nL—EI Rl EiE
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Number of
non-voting
Nature of Long/short deferred
Name of Director interests position shares  Percentage
ERERE
EEpR EEME HE/ %R BERGEE Bat
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure Personal Long 300,000 30%
HelEEt & A e
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl Personal Long 300,000 30%
BREL L & A o)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung Personal Long 200,000 20%
HREESE EA AE
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix Personal Long 200,000 20%
HEIR 4 18 A e
Ordinary shares of US$1.00 each in a subsidiary —  (iii)  Fi/& % W Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited (“Mobicon- Limited ([ Mobicon-Mantech |) % Ji
Mantech”) A 1.003 70 Z 3% 3 it
As at 31st March 2014, Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho RZZF—MF=H=+—H ' Manuel
had beneficial interests in his personal capacity in Mobicon- Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho %t £ LAE A & 5
Mantech as follows: E 25 1% 8 Mobicon-Mantech#EZ5 20 1
Nature of Long/short Number of
Name of director interests position shares  Percentage
EEnE EEME HE HKE R &AE BOk
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho Personal Long 490 49%
Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Moutinho %t 4 & A S=)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Equity and Debt Securities (continued)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain non-beneficial ordinary
shares of the subsidiaries held in bare trust for the Group, as at 31st March
2014, none of the directors or the chief executive of the Company had an
interest or short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or the
Model Code.

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year, the directors and the chief executive
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years of
age) had any interest in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights
to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of the
Company and/or its associated corporations (within the meaning of the
SFQ).

Save as disclosed above and under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries,
its associated companies, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors or the chief executive
of the Company to hold any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO).

Model Code for Securities Transactions

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the Company had adopted a Code
of Conduct regarding directors’ transactions in securities of the Company
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made all reasonable
enquires with the directors of the Company, the Company was of the view
that the directors had complied with the said Code of Conduct throughout
the year.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”
in this report and Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Interests of Substantial Shareholders and Other
Persons in the Share Capital of the Company

As at 31st March 2014, so far as is known to the directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than a director or the chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

32 BB R oA N R AR 2 ] AR
vh B 2 B A
R-F—ME=A=+—0  BAATEERM
B THAL(FRBARREERTRER)R
AL TR BADBIR P A IR IR R
PIBXVERE LR35 H 2 R A R AL BB 2 4
HHAE

Number of shares

BROHE
Long/short Beneficial Family
Name position owner interest  Percentage
£\ HE "R/ KA BERBERA RiEfER Bot
MZ2B Holding Limited Long 90,000,000 - 45%
S~ (Note (a))
(Mt3E(a)
Bestmark Management Limited Long 30,000,000 - 15%
S (Note (b))
(B E (b))
Ms. Wan Lam Keng Long - 30,000,000 15%
EMREL L A (Note (b))
(FfF5E(b)
Notes: f5E -
(a) Please refer to Note (a) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's  (a) BL2E [ EERITHREHNBARESEHFZE
Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. %= | —EikiEE(a) ©
(b) Please refer to Note (b) under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's (b) BL2HEENTREENBARESESF 2 E

Interests in Equity and Debt Securities”. The interests of Bestmark Management
Limited and Ms. Wan Lam Keng were in respect of the same interest and duplicated
each other.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2014, according to the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO, there was no person who had any interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, the Group sold less than 10% of its goods to its five
largest customers.

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers are as follows:

24%
41%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or customers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions disclosed in Note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements also constituted continuing connected transactions
and connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details
of such connected transactions are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions

1. The Group occupies the following shops and premises leased from
M-Bar Limited (“M-Bar"). M-Bar is a company beneficially owned
as to 30% by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man
Yi, Beryl, 20% by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20%
by Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive
directors of the Company.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

(a)

On 28th January 2011, Mobicon Holdings Limited ("MHL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered
into a new tenancy agreement with M-Bar to renew the
lease agreements in respect of Private Car Parking Space
Nos. 6, 7, 24 and 25 on 3rd Floor, Private Car Parking
Space Nos.6 and 13 on 4th Floor, Units 1-11 on 7th Floor,
Units 1-4 on 8th Floor and Units 1-9 on 23rd Floor, New
Trend Centre, 704 Prince Edward Road East, 104 King Fuk
Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong (collectively, the
“Properties”) for a term of three years from 1st February
2011 to 31st January 2014 at an aggregate monthly rental
of HK$213,000.

The lease agreement was early terminated on 30th
September 2013.

On 30th September 2013, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-bar to renew the tenancies in respect of
the same premises for a term of three years commencing
from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016, of which
for the period from 1st October 2013 to 31st January
2014, the aggregate monthly rental of the new tenancy
agreement was of HK$213,000 and for the period from
1st February 2014 to 30th September 2016, the aggregate
monthly rental of the new tenancy agreement was of
HK$222,000.

The leased premises are used as the headquarters of the
Group and ancillary use.

On 28th January 2011, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-Bar to renew the lease agreement in
respect of 1st Floor and Portion of 3rd Floor, Efficiency
House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for a term of three years commencing from 1st
February 2011 to 31st January 2014 at an aggregate
monthly rental of HK$105,000.

The lease agreement was early terminated on
30th September 2013.

On 30th September 2013, MHL entered into a new tenancy
agreement with M-bar in respect of Portion of 1st Floor and
3rd Floor, Efficiency House, 35 Tai Yau Street, San Po Kong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong for a term of three years commencing
from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016, of which
for the period from 1st October 2013 to 31st January 2014
at an aggregate monthly rental of HK$105,000.

The leased premises are used as storage with ancillary
office (in respect of Portion of 1st Floor) and godown for
storage (in respect of 3rd Floor).

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
HK$3,834,000 (Note 30) to M-Bar.
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Report of the Directors
EHEHRY

Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

2.

On 27th September 2010, Mantech Electronics (Proprietary)
Limited (“Mantech Electronics”) as tenant, an indirect 51% owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a lease agreement with
UGD Property (Proprietary) Limited ("UGD Property”), in respect
of Erf 45-47 and 49, New Centre Township, 32 Laub Street, New
Centre in South Africa for a term of three years commencing from
st October 2010 to 30th September 2013 at monthly rentals
of (i) ZAR 75,750 (approximately HK$84,840) per month for the
period from 1st October 2010 to 30th September 2011; (ii) ZAR
83,325 (approximately HK$93,324) per month for the period from
1st October 2011 to 30th September 2012; and (iii) ZAR 91,658
(approximately HK$102,657) per month for the period from 1st
October 2012 to 30th September 2013. UGD Property is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited,
Mantech Electronics, Mobicon International Limited, Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited and Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited
(all are subsidiaries of the Company) and owns 49% interest in
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

On 30th September 2013, Mantech Electronics as tenant entered
into a new lease agreement UGD Property, in respect of Erf 45-47
and 49, New Centre Township, 32 Laub Street, New Centre in
South Africa for a term of three years commencing from 1st
October 2013 to 30th September 2016 at monthly rentals of (i)
ZAR 113,294 (approximately HK$88,483) per month for the period
from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2014; (ii) ZAR 119,526
(approximately HK$93,349) per month for the period from 1st
October 2014 to 30th September 2015; and (iii) ZAR 126,099
(approximately HK$98,484) per month for the period from 1st
October 2015 to 30th September 2016. UGD Property is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited,
Mantech Electronics, Mobicon International Limited, Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited and Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited
(all are subsidiaries of the Company) and owns 49% interest in
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group’s
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
approximately HK$1,010,000 (Note 30) to UGD Property.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)
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On 27th September 2010, Mantech Electronics as tenant entered
into a lease agreement with Tiger Moth Trading No.53 (Proprietary)
Limited (“Tiger Moth"”), in respect of 12 Lennox Road, Greyville,
Durban in South Africa for a term of three years commencing
from 1st October 2010 to 30th September 2013 at monthly rentals
of (i) ZAR 24,290 (approximately HK$27,205) per month for the
period from 1st October 2010 to 30th September 2011; (ii) ZAR
26,719 (approximately HK$29,925) per month for the period from
1st October 2011 to 30th September 2012; and (iii) ZAR 29,390
(approximately HK$32,917) per month for the period from 1st
October 2012 to 30th September 2013. Tiger Moth is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited,
Mantech Electronics, Mobicon International Limited, Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited and Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited
(all are subsidiaries of the Company) and owns 49% interest in
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

On 30th September 2013, Mantech Electronics as tenant entered
into the new lease agreement with Tiger Moth, in respect of 12
Lennox Road, Greyville, Durban in South Africa for a term of three
years commencing from 1st October 2013 to 30th September 2016
at monthly rentals of (i) ZAR 31,006 (approximately HK$24,216)
per month for the period from 1st October 2013 to 30th September
2014; (i) ZAR 32,712 (approximately HK$25,548) per month for the
period from 1st October 2014 to 30th September 2015; and (iii) ZAR
34,511 (approximately HK$26,953) per month for the period from
1st October 2015 to 30th September 2016. Tiger Moth is a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Moutinho, a director of AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited, Langa Holdings (Proprietary) Limited,
Mantech Electronics, Mobicon International Limited, Mobicon-
Mantech Holdings Limited and Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited
(all are subsidiaries of the Company) and owns 49% interest in
Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited.

The leased premises are used for office purpose for the Group’s
operations in South Africa.

During the year, the Group paid rental expenses amounting to
approximately HK$276,000 (Note 30) to Tiger Moth.
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Report of the Directors
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

4. On 11th July 2011, the Group has entered into a Supply Agreement
with Clover Display Limited (“Clover”) for the supply of IC,
passive components and equipment. The Supply Agreement
with Clover was at a term of three years commencing from 11th
July 2011 to 31st March 2014 at maximum sales amount of (i)
HK$2,100,000 for the period from 11th July 2011 to 31st March
2012; (ii) HK$3,500,000 for the period from 1st April 2012 to 31st
March 2013; and (iii) HK$4,900,000 for the period from 1st April
2013 to 31st March 2014. Clover is a company beneficially owned
as at 60% of PC Supply Limited, which in turn owned as to 99.9%
and 0.1% by A Plus Computer Shop Limited (A Plus”) and Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Berly respectively. A Plus is owned as to 30% by Dr.
Hung Kim Fung, Measure, 30% by Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl, 20%
by Mr. Hung Ying Fung and as to the remaining 20% by Mr. Yeung
Kwok Leung, Allix, all of whom being the executive directors of the
Company.

During the year, the Group sold goods amounting to approximately
HK$1,217,000 (Note 30) to Clover.

The directors (including the independent non-executive directors) consider
these continuing connected transactions have been conducted in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal commercial
terms and continuation of these transactions in the future will be
beneficial to the Group.

These continuing connected transactions have also been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors of the Company who have confirmed
that such continuing connected transactions have been (a) entered into by
the Group in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (b)
conducted on normal commercial terms; and (c) entered into in accordance
with the terms of the lease agreements governing the transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole. The independent non-executive directors
of the Company have also confirmed that the aggregate value of the
transactions were within the respective maximum amounts as agreed with
the Stock Exchange.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The auditors of the Company have also confirmed to the Board that these
continuing connected transactions have received the approval of the Board
and have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the lease
agreements governing the transactions. The auditors of the Company have
also confirmed that the aggregate value of the transactions were within
the respective maximum amounts as agreed with the Stock Exchange.

Distributable Reserves

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), retained profit and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders, subject to the
condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make
a distribution out of retained profit and contributed surplus if (i) it is, or
would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become
due, or (ii) the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st March 2014 amounted to
approximately HK$68,310,000 (2013: HK$69,558,000).

Five Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
each of the last five financial years is set out on pages 131 to 132.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014
were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office
will expire upon the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution for
the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of
the Company for the subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of directors,

Hung Kim Fung, Measure
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd June 2014
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

MOBICON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mobicon Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 47 to 130, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31st March 2014, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act of Bermuda, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
P AZ B

Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors” judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31st March 2014, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P05769

Hong Kong, 23rd June 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

nWtdﬁﬁﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31st March 2014 2 — &

—HE=ZA=T—BLEE

2014 2013
—E-mF —F—=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
b= FHET T
Revenue g 5 603,276 545,887
Cost of sales SHERA (493,092) (444,6006)
Gross profit EH 110,184 101,281
Other income and gains E AU Rz 6 2,735 1,292
Distribution and selling expenses DHERIEEBR (38,463) (36,438)
General and administrative expenses —RRITHEEER (64,023) (57,226)
Operating profit SR F 7 10,433 8,909
Finance costs Bl & R 8 (1,175) (1,019)
Share of losses of associates FE{RER & N A& IR (16) (87)
Profit before income tax % BT 18 5 Rl 9,242 7,803
Income tax expense PSR 9 (3,911) (2,667)
Profit for the year F R F 5,331 5,136
Profit attributable to: FEMRRF
Equity holders of the Company RARE=RTAEA 10 1,134
Non-controlling interests IRV AESS 4,002
5,136
Earnings per share attributable FRNRRNFERFTEA
to the equity holders of the Company FEAE TR & F
during the year
— Basic and diluted — EARREE 11 O HKO.57 centiB 1L
Details of dividends are disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial R EEEENGA IR EM 128858 o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

A iE M A 2 AR

For the year ended 31st March 2014 HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

Note
{55
Profit for the year FNm A
Other comprehensive Ht2mE (X)) A
(expense)/income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently %1% a] E #5452
to profit or loss Bm2HEHA
Currency translation differences: B E R
— Subsidiaries — B A A
— Associate —HE N E]
Item that will not be reclassified RETEENDEZEm .
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Revaluation gain on property, plant and BEME - BB KRG
equipment pal &
Other comprehensive (expense)/income, Hiz2mE (), WA
net of income tax (EINRATER)
Total comprehensive income for FREZEBRALE
the year
Total comprehensive income FEME 2 E A LRRE:
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company RARERFAEA 10
Non-controlling interests FEPE R M A
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2014 2013
—E—NmEF
HK$'000
FERT

—F-=
HK$ 000
FbT

5,136

(5,153)
16

8,058

2,921

8,057

6,608
1,449

8,057

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2014



Statements of Financial Position

MR DL

As at 31st March 2014 R—ZE—E=A=+—H

Note
BisE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and ME - BE REE

equipment 14
Intangible assets BV EE 15
Investments in subsidiaries JAKI B R T 2% E 16
Investments in associates ~ FAEEE N T ZRE 17
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 BRN 19
Other receivables H R UGRIB

and deposits Kiz® 30(b)
Amount due from el —FE BT B A A

a subsidiary P QL
Current income tax AU B BN ERFT1S A

recoverable
Cash and bank balances Re MIBTT4E 5 20
Total assets EEAE
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade payables FEfTE SRR 21
Other payables H b e 5UR 30(c) & (d)
Amounts due to associates JE{THE4 A B 5018
Short-term bank loans RERITER 22
Current income tax liabilities BIERFT1SF B &
Net current assets RBEERE

ERBIEBERAT - —B—NEER

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—E-NFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET

26,351

17

181,132
61,603

165,825
62,645

14,014 8,046

185
41,257

298,191 273,664
324,559 294,993

36,966
28,588
15

46,429
6

90
142,129 112,688
156,062 160,976

Company
ARTF
2014 2013
ZEBE-mEFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
100,248 102,188
W) 102,188 |
4,415
8
4,792 4,423
105,040 106,611
347
347
4,076
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Statements of Financial Position

MR DL

As at 31st March 2014 R=—ZE—E=A=+—H

Group Company
REE ARTF
2014 2013 2014 2013
ZE-RmE —T=F ZB-NF —T—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FET THETT T FET

Total assets less current & & & E B R E

liabilities =i 182,430 182,305 105,016 106,264
Non-current liabilities JEFREEE
Deferred income tax BEFSHERE

liabilities 23 40 -
Net assets EEFE 182,430 182,265 105,016 106,264
Capital and reserves PAUNEE 5

attributable to the equity 1585 A FE{L B A<
Share capital AR 24 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves B 25 144,897 146,263 85,016 86,264

holders of the Company [ &
164,897 166,263 105,016 106,264
Non-controlling interests JEiZ Rz 17,533 16,002 - -
Total equity g 182,430 182,265 105,016 106,264

HUNG KIM FUNG, MEASURE YEUNG MAN YI, BERYL
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
FE BIFEFITE AR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR R B

For the year ended 31st March 2014 HZE—ZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

Balance at 1st April 2012

Total comprehensive income for the year

RoF--%
RA-RZ&s
EREANAEE

16,292
1449

176,947

8,057

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Dividends of the Company:
2012 final dividend
2013 interim dividend

BRFHERER
k&
KRERS:
“E--FRERS
“E-CERERE

(1,739

(1739)

(2,000]
(1,000]

(1,739

(4,739

Balance at 31st March 2013

RoE-z%
ZAZt-Bz&8

16,002

182,265

Representing:
2013 final dividend
Others

ERBIEBERAT - —B—NEER

e
-3-zERES
0]
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

22 /N
e

For the year ended 31st March 2014 BlE = F—F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR RS
Reserves
fife
Non-
Share  Share  Capital Translation Revaluation Retained Total controlling Total
capital premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits reserves interests  equity
Rx  ROBE REGE RERE EGEE BREN  BRST FERER RREE
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
Thr TExr TR TExr  TEr  TExr  TEr  TEr  TEn
Note 24) (Notg]
(Fsk24) (H3E)
Balance at 1st April 2013 RZF-=F
MA-B&R 20000 16,706 800 (1432) 808 12131 146263 16002 182265
Total comprehensive income ERZENAEE
for the year - - - sy 20 1013 634 2268 290
Release of revaluation resere VER =B
upon depreciation of property, TERSREHER
plant and equipment - - - - (145) 145 - - -
Dividends paid to B TR ER 2
non-controlling interests Re - - - - - - - [737) [737)
Dividends of the Company: KRFERE :
2013 inal dividend ZE-ERERE - - - - - (10000 {1,000/ - (1,000
2014 interim dividend “E-MERERE - - - - - [1.000] (1,000 - [1,000)
- - - - (145 (1,855 (2,000) (737 213
Balance at 31st March 2014 W_E-mE
ZAZT-RAZER 20000 16,706 800 (3864) 9966 121289 144897 17533 182430
Representing: RER
2014 final dividend “E-IERERE 1,000
Others =0 120,289
121,269
Note: B 5

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital and share premium of
subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the reorganization which took

place on 18th April 2001.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEBlEER

For the year ended 31st March 2014 HZE—ZT—MF=A=+—HI-FE

2014

—E-OF

Note HK$'000
s FTHRT

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations

Overseas income tax paid
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

REXRELCHERE
REEBELEZREFR
EfEBINTIEH
ENEBMEH

26 9,639
(2,190)
(456)

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant

and equipment

(Advance to)/repayment from associates
Net cash outflow from acquisition of

a subsidiary

REXBEEZREFH

REFHELEZRERE

BEHFE

HEME - BE AR
PSR

(BfF) /W e B & R B RR0E

WiE— B ARZ
REmFE

6,993

120
14 (6,180)

319

(4)

27
(585)

Net cash used in investing activities

BRETSDHA2REFHR

(6,330)

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest paid

Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Repayments of short-term bank loans
Proceeds from short-term bank loans

RETHELZRESRE
ERHME
BEIRTARBBRR 2L
Bk T IFERE s 2 LS
ERBHRITER
RHIRITE RS IR

(1,175)
(2,000)
(737)
(224,293)
236,827

Net cash generated from/(used in)

financing activities

MEFBDEE(FH)2
ReF8

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

2013
—F-=
HK$ 000
Fb7T

9,394
(2,818)
930

(1,019)
(3,000
(1,739)
(184,114)
185,217

(4,655)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

A Bl aimER

For the year ended 31st March 2014 HZE—ZT—NF=A=+—HIFE

2014
—E-HOF
Note HK$'000
Wi 7
Net increase in cash and cash ReERRESZEEY
equivalents R 9,285
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FYZRER
of the year ReFEY 35,854
Exchange losses on cash and WRe RIBITHESKRZ
bank balances [E 5 E518 (3,882)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZBEERASEEY
at end of the year
Analysis of balances of cash and RekREEFEY
cash equivalents: EERDAT
Cash at bank and in hand HRITRFHERS 41,257
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2013
—F-=
HK$ 000
FbT

2,020

39,249

(5,415)

35,854

35,854
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B B R

2.1

General Information

Mobicon Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the trading
and distribution of electronic parts, components and equipment
and computer products, mobile accessories and other products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company under the Companies Act of
Bermuda. The addresses of its registered office and principal place
of business are set out in the Company’s annual report.

The Company’s shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 7th May 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors (the
“Board"”) on 23rd June 2014.

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“"HKICPA"). In additions, these consolidated financial
statements comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies QOrdinance, which for this financial
year and the comparative period continue to be those of the
predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”,
which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

ERAEEERAR - —F—NFEFEH

— & B
SRAEEERAR([ARR) REM
BRAR(MEIAKE]) ETEREES
ROHEFEM T hEREEME
i FREFREMER XS -

ARRRIRIE AR ERBEE B 5 E T
R REHRRERAF - HEfM# =R
R EZLEME 2 I N AR B FR

ARRBRHE-_EE-—FAALRBHE
BAEBERZMEBRARI([BRPT]) £
o

BRBEHIN  BFREMBHRRAT
BT (FHIT)IE -

HEFAMBHRRER T —HFRHA
—tZHEARAEFS([EFg )it
NIRRT

FE G BURM

RELEREMBRERMRAzEIEZS
STBREININT - By mAEAI - HF
BERNIEERFEERER -

35 1 451 W
HEFAMBHRRDIBBEEBGEQ
ERMCBEEMBREEAN([EER
BHEER DREL - 1SN - WEHERS
BHRREKREE R BEH 2 BRKER
E - RREFIN BB R BMEBIF622E)
MR N ET6IGEFEBTIRIEX N FE IR A RE
[BRB RF 2 BEMERRE LB
E o RAVREEREBRFEEBERE
BT R AP (58328) Z B IREE - It
FHREMBRRNMT BRI MBS LT
BRAT ETRADZEBRAKERE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B B R

2.2

(a)

56

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

The Group has adopted the following new and amended standards

and interpretations, which are mandatory for the first time for

the financial year beginning 1st April 2013 and are relevant to

its operations, in the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements
— Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

(Amendment)

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements
(Amendment)

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and
(Amendment) Joint Ventures

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Government Loans

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in

Other Entities

Consolidated Financial Statements,
Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Amendment)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation  Stripping Costs in the Production
(“Int") 20 Phase of a Surface Mine

HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

(a)

FE R BORBIE )

RAMBBRDREE LKA ERR
o WERRAFEINEZME - BE
R EMBIFHER -

RETEBERMBREENZEETH
BRE - BERETEANG G &
BENAERAASESBRZBE
FIEL HE - P RBREEH S RE %
ZEE - BRI LG HEEMBRE
BERTE Z BB ERE -

Bt HERIKEZZE

P& BT FET RIEETER -
EREGAMBERRE  ARERAT
THEAEEXBEFAR  LAR=
E-=—FUA-HHRBZHRFEEER
SRR 2 FT R RIS RT R a2 o

BRGRARIREAIA)  MBSR 2 R-Hib

EWEIRR K23
B SRR 0R [EERH
(ZF——F)(BiTH)
BRSHEAETR BB RR

(ZF——F)(BiTA)
BRSHEAEBR REERARAERRLZ
(ZF——F)(BiTH) R

BAMBESERER  BFER
(BF1%)
BRMBREEARTS RE-SREEESR
(BF1%) BERH
BRMBRSERENR  HAPHER
BAOBRSRAEE  AERH
BRMBESEAETE  RENNER ER

BRMBREEAR0R
BRMBREEAENHR

EollsR  AE%h
REBERAEEL

BEMBREENEDR  BR: B
(BF1%)
BAMBASERENE  AVEHE
Br(ARIBAEREE  BARRSAERRY
§g)-2ERN% SRR

BRUHREEN(ETA)

BEMBREEN 2T
NE-F-—FEEY
FEyE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B B R

Do’

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
New and amended standards adopted by the Group: (continued)
Except for as described below, the application of the above new
and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKAS 1, “Presentation of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”, regarding
other comprehensive income. The main change resulting from
these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items
presented in “other comprehensive income” on the basis of
whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or loss
subsequently. The impact of the adoption of this amendment is
shown in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

HKAS 28 (2011), “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”,
includes the requirement for joint ventures and associates to
be equity accounted following the issue of HKFRS 11 “Joint
Arrangements”. The Group has already used the equity method to
account for the associates, refer to Note 17 for details.

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements” builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within
the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.
The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the
determination of control where this is difficult to assess. The
Group assesses HKFRS 10's impact and considered that there is
minimal impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 12, " Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities” includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet vehicles. The Group has disclosed the
relevant information for the investments in associates in Note 17.

HKFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”, aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The requirements, which are
largely aligned between HKFRSs and US GAAP, do not extend the
use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted by other
standards with HKFRSs. The Group has included the disclosure
for financial assets and non-financial assets in the consolidated
financial statements.

BRASKEERARA - —F—NEFH

FEGFBURMZE )

B LI A (47)

BT BRR K FEZZE ()

A ERA 25T RASETER  (48)

BR NP E SN - A E A LA
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ERERTE -

ARG EUBVRET N A HFHXZ
EH At EN=ERHNZ5]1TIERE
HibZ2EWRA - IHERTSI B2 T2 EH A
REERVARZIINEM2mEALZ
HERZERAERBLRARERIRE
Bam o BEENE - RMILERT 2 EER
meBahAMEHKERES

BB ERFBE T ——FIRHE
RAIREERFIZKENEY  HEEBY
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NS EFHEAR A AR REEE QR AR
ZRE - AEBEC ARG HERBE
RAAFR(FFREET) ©

BREMERELERNFE105] [ 4555 HK
BERBRARA - BBEETHIERSE
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PR REMERR o ERITRAZIA
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105E 28 YRASHHAKEGAME
BRIFZEEM -

BB BHMEERNE 2R [ REREME
oin WERARNELER(BEAE
ZHE - BERR - FhR2ERLEME
ERERMINCER) BT AR
BEMTE - ARECRHFIT7TRERBZ
RAZIREZBHER

BRMBHRELRE R [ A FEAEIE
EEBRHAFEZREERRERSE
BEMBHREERN 2 AT EFERBER
EZBE IR SARTT— B OB EAE 4
RE - ZFRTEEBHB B BHRE LR
BEBAR SRR - AEBEBARF
EetRAEE - BRHEIRAEEE
PRS2 A ERIT R E LB FHE
FRLEAERES - EAN(AIAE R ZE R - AR E
ERGAMBREFATHEENIFER
BEZHEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B B R

2. Summary of Significant Accounting

Policies (continued)

2.2 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures (continued)
(b) The following new, revised or amended standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning 1st April 2013 and have not been early

adopted:

HKFRSs (Amendment)

HKFRSs (Amendment)

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 (2011)

(Amendment)

HKFRS 14
HKAS 19 (Amendment)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 36 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures*

Financial Instruments*
Investment Entities’

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivative and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

Levies'

: Change effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2014.

Z Change effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2014.
8 Change effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2016.
¢ The effective date to be determined.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of related
impact of adopting the above new, revised or amended standards
and interpretations to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position
to state whether substantial changes to the Group’s accounting
policies and presentation of the consolidated financial statements

will be resulted.
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(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i B B B R

2.3
231

(a)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has right to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Profits
and losses resulting from inter-company transactions that are
recognized in assets are also eliminated. When necessary,
accounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liahilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The Group recognizes any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.3
231
(a)

232

2.4

60

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognized and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in
the case of bargain purchase, the difference is recognized directly
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee's net assets including goodwill.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.
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2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Associates (continued)

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is
recognized in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognize further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting period whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognizes the
amount adjacent to “share of profit/(loss) of associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognized
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealized
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gains and losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering committee that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within “general and administrative
expenses”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated
in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analyzed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the
amortized cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss, and other
changes in carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive
income.
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2.6
(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognized in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at the
end of the reporting period;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated
at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive income.
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64

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold properties 60 years
Furniture and fixtures 4 years
Office equipment 4 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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(a)

(b)
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group's interest in net fair value of the net
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash generating
units (“CGUs"), or group of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units
to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and
the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognized
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Distribution rights

Expenditures on rights acquired for manufacturing and distribution
of certain integrated circuit (“IC”) products are recognized as an
asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over 4 years to reflect
the pattern in which the related economic benefits are recognized.
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2.9

2.10

(a)

(b)

66

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life - for example, goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to amortization
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets
at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorized as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for the amounts
that are settled or expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group's loans and receivables comprise “trade
receivables”, “other receivables and deposits” and “cash and bank
balances” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2.10

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it
within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date (the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset). Investments are initially recognized
at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognized
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in
equity are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
as “net gains and losses from equity on disposal/impairment of
available-for-sale financial assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as part of other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is established.
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2.12
(a)

68

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. If
a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As
a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.
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2.13

B A e

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognized impairment loss is recognized in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses
the criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognized in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognized in the profit and loss. Impairment losses recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on equity instruments
are not reversed through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realizable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses. Costs of inventories include the transfer
from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges
purchases of raw materials.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

70

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liahilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.
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2.18

2.19

BRASERRAA -

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortized
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognized as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such
financial guarantees are given to banks on behalf of subsidiaries to
secure loans and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantee contract issued by the Group are initially
measured at the fair values and,if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

o the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate,

cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.
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2.20

(a)

(b)

72
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Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax
is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the countries where the Company's subsidiaries and
associates operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax autharities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.20
(c)

2.21
(a)

(b)

(c)

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in independently administered
funds. The Group's contributions to the defined contribution
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognized when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognized until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognized as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to become exercisable. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become exercisable. It
recognizes the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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2.21
(d)

2.22

74

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The expected cost of profit sharing and bonus payments are
recognized as a liability when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for profit sharing and bonus plans are expected to
be settled within 12 months and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when they are settled.

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognized when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognized even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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(a)

(c)

2.24

2.25

Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied, stated net of discounts returns and value added taxes.
The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognized on the transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and title has
passed.

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Service income, management fee and commission income are
recognized when the services are rendered.

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized
as a liability in the Group's and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (continued)

2.26 Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members

who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.
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(a)
(i)

BRASERRAA -

Financial Risk Management

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department
(group treasury) under policies approved by the Board. Group
treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close
co-operation with the Group's operating units. The Board provides
written principles for overall risk management, as well as written
policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong, Mainland China, South
Africa, Malaysia, Singapore and Thailand and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to United States dollars (“USD"”). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognized assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.

The directors of the Company consider that the foreign exchange
risk is not significant and the Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange risk exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risk exposure should the need arise.
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued) 3. MEEkEE
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WE R “5
(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) mEE R (4E)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) SMNE R B ()
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the reporting Tiﬁﬁmﬁf‘%&i BHRAEBKEENERE
date to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rates, AT EEE  MAEEMEHERTE
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before ZIERT - ANEBE R ATE R B S A ¥ E
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and TCIERAIRE S IR S ) 2 GURRE o
liabilities).
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in foreign in profit before (decrease)
currency rate income tax in equity*
BRETSBLAT
IR % SR, g m,/
/() (D) (H)*
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
2014 —E-mF

If New Taiwan dollar weakens against USD HFTaBELETRE
If New Taiwan dollar strengthens against USD i3 & % 3 =T FHE
I Singaporean dollar weakens against USD  {##TIn% c =iz E
I Singaporean dollar strengthens against USD  {##7 N3 7t X =T FHE
If South African Rand weakens against USD  (HEI3FRE HETRE
If South African Rand strengthens against USD M RIFERE4E K2 T FHE

2013 —E—=fF
If Singaporean dollar weakens against USD TRFT M I R E T E 5% 328 -
If Singaporean dollar strengthens against USD  fii ¥ i 7T . = T FHE 5% (328) -
If South African Rand weakens against USD WIS ERI K ELEE 5% (59) -
If South African Rand strengthens against USD R 3ERE S K3 L FHE -5% 59 -
* Excluding retained profits * TEIEBFEH
(ii) Price risk (ii) B8 %
The Group is not exposed to significant price risks during the years BE-_Z—"NONER=ZZE—=F=A
ended 31st March 2014 and 2013. =+—BLEFE AEBVTEMHEKX

BB -
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued) 3. WMHREEEHE e
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)
(a)  Market risk (continued) (a) 5 R ()
(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk (i)  BH2RERNFEFRELR
The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly REBZFE=EHREEEZRGHTE
attributable to its interest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings RITIEE - REBMNEREZEEER
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest- AEEEAmMHRERENERR - NE
rate risk. Details of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings Bt BB EZFBRGE VI RE W T
have been disclosed in Note 22 to the consolidated financial 224258 o N5 (B3R IR N A A 1| 3R SR I
statements. The Group currently does not have any interest rate KoM BEE—BERMNERAR
hedging policies. However, management monitors interest rate WA T ERE REPEATERR
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRETMABEMESEFITE - K
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held SERAEHAINSENCGERFEBE
constant, of the Group's profit before income tax (through the L) RAEERAEFEATEHRAEE
impact on floating rate borrowings) and the Group's equity. BHBURE °
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit Increase/
(decrease) before (decrease)
in basis points income tax in equity*
BRFTBBIA
BE#m  BREmS E@msmS
(H2) (D) (R D)*
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
2014 —E-mE
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (295) =
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 295 =
2013 —T-=F
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 (229) -
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) 229 -
* Excluding retained profits * TEIE R 17 A
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3.1
(b)

(c)

80

Financial Risk Management (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the counterparty
is managed at an early stage and sufficient provision is made for
possible defaults. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and bank balances and other receivables and deposits, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the
board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group's short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
reserve barrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

At 31st March 2014, the Group had several short-term bank loans
with carrying amounts of approximately HK$58,963,000 (2013:
HK$46,429,000). At 31st March 2014, the Group had unutilised
facilities of approximately HK$29,280,000 (2013: HK$26,879,000).
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B YEHREEERDESARER
mE o NEEAREZES  fHEE
HESIARPECEETE - A5EE
BREARFBREREERE  BH&
ERBANERREREARRNES R
BENMBENIHNRRL EERDES
[\ o

R-ZE—NF=A=+—H ' ' A&EEA
EETEEHETER  HEEELA
58,963,00078 7T ( —Z — =4F : 46,429,000/5
) M-_TE—ME=F=+—H &£
[E K &) FH Bl & 4929,280,0008 L (ZE—=
£ : 26,879,000/ 7T) °
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3.1
(c)

Financial Risk Management (continued) 3. WMBREEEM e
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 WMEEBEEEE)
Liquidity risk (continued) (c) ImBELEMEE)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities rEEepmEERBBERNRS ABIRE
as at the reporting date, based on the contractual undiscounted HARBEIRFREE 2 B HAOR AT -
payments, was as follows:
Weighted
average  On demand Total Total
interest  or within Between  Between Over undiscounted carrying
rate Tyear 1to2years 2to5years Syears  cashflow amount
BARERY )
mE  R-FR BeNE
FHH = ®E -F-F CEFEF BBIE By REAE
% HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THL TATL TATL TATL TAL
Group bi% |
2014 “E-mE
Trade paybales EREZER 48,032 48,032 48,032
Other payables Hib (T8 29,165 29,165 29,165
Amounts due to associates  FESEEE 1\ A FUE 11 11 11
Short-term bank loans BHRTER 59,250 59,250 58,963
136,458 136,458 136171
2013 “E-=F
Trade paybales EREZER 36,966 - - - 36,966 36,966
Other payables HitERTUR 27,984 - - - 27,984 21,984
Amounts due to associates  FEREE& N AIFIE 15 - - - 15 15
Short-term bank loans RHRTER 251 46,707 - - - 46,707 46,429
111672 - - - M 11139
Weighted On
average demand Between  Between Total Total
interest  or within 1t02 2t05 Over undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year years years Syears  cashflow amount
BRERY KR
mE  R-%FR RERE
TR = 8 -E-F CERE @BIE a% EBEAE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEr TEL TEL TAL THT
Company YN
2014 —E-NEF
2013 —E-=F
Other payables Hib (78 37 - - - 347 37

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total equity. Net
borrowing is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents.

The gearing ratios at 31st March 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

S0 5 R B 4 B 42 )

2% A i o A2 T

AEEEREAY BIEAREAEET
SECE A AAREIEHERE
BEMEREE ABERS  ARRE
SEBRERREE SRA -

RERFRABELERE  AEETFHE
ARFEKNZEREER - RREALDR
BEITHIAR o

AEERARERELREEEA o ik
TR G BT HR A S G E -
EFFDREEREARS LA S E
W -

RZB-—NERZTE—=F=A=+—

BzEEABLENT
2014 2013
=k —E=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
Total borrowings BEBsE 58,963 46,429
Less: Cash and cash equivalents o IRERBEEEY (41,257) (35,854)
Net borrowings BEFHE 17,706 10,575
Total equity W A RE 182,430 182,265
Gearing ratio BEBGLE 10% 6%
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3. Financial Risk Management (continued) 3.
3.3  Fair value estimation 3.3
The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been defined

as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices)
(level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable input) (level 3).

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

3.4 Financial instruments by category 3.4
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments at the reporting date are as follows:

S 5 L B 5 PR 42

O FAH s
TRBEHEETEDFAATLEFES &
MTH - SERARTHOT :

. HREESRRBEELEMS 2R
BORERE)(F—F) -

. BRE— R BIEZIREN  ATEE
(BN B %) sk fE 3% (B f (B & 67
E)BRMErEESBBERAE
(B8 -

o WIEKBEBRAEMEHRIEZE
EXaEHAEAEERAEE
AB)(E=H) -

FN - E—HK F_RRE=HzHEL
EEAEE -

4 b T E R
Zem T EEANHRE Bz REED
™

Group Company
PN | b NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—e-mg -T-=F =-®-mF -F-=%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FHT FTiER FTAT
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables: B YR
— Trade receivables -ERE SRR 61,603 -
— Other receivables and deposits —Hi WA
b 12,957 -
— Cash and bank balances R RIBITHEH 41,257
Financial liabilities tREE
Amortized costs: BSERAS
— Trade payables -EREBESEX -
— Other payables —H i EAFUE 341
— Amounts due to associates —}Tﬁ“ﬁﬂﬁﬁé‘*“
m _
— Short-term bank loans - LB;%E BX -

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR
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(a)

(b)

(©)

84

Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments
Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less variable selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer demand
and competitor actions. Management reassesses these estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

Estimated recoverability of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on ongoing assessment of
the recoverability of the receivables. This assessment is based
on the credit history of its customers and other debtors and
current market conditions, and requires the use of judgments and
estimates. Management reassesses the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables at the end of each reporting period.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions
including Hong Kong, Mainland China, South Africa, Malaysia,
Singapore and Thailand. Significant judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income taxes. There
are certain transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

4.

(a)

(b)

[BH 82 & w0 wH B B

AEE R ERBEGR BRI RETFR
fhst RAE - BEREHRER TRER
HERFENARHE -

AEEBAREMEL AT RER - BRE
& AUMELZEFHAAZEIR
HRAERER - TXAwmEHT —EH
BEEZEERBERABERAELER
HEZBRER A R ERER

iz W 2B EE
FEZAZRFE/BEXRBEBERM
AEERTEEHERXZHRE - %F
EEDRBERITTREBEUEEEMRZ
BEHELEREL - EFRREH LB
FUFZTHHECHBMBTELEEK
2  EEEREREMHEEBEH
HEZE AR

WEE W 2 7 Wi sk B Gt R WAL sk Y 2 A
A g el A JRE
AEEEIEBRAMNGERFREZ TR
EIF2/E - ATLIE W E 5 8RR e B At B UL
FREERERE - WERFEDRER
FREMEBAZEERHERRITHR
BE - WAERHE LA - BEEER
BEREHNHAEEAERTHERESK
RN E A FE MR IR 2 R (B B o

Fie 5 ¢

AEBABMZ EREER ZAFHR
BERE  PEAM - B FRA
D MK ERE - REEMSHEE
TRE - AELEARAE - RAFEER
BiIEH  BETXBRAFERKTAE
ERE  WMREEHEIKEHBERE
MNFRFEZHBIR  ZEZRREE
7 BER E 53R 2 BN HA A 45 B SR AE A
BB REKRTE -
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S.

Revenue and Segment Information

eV Tig Negi]

Revenue recognized during the year is as follows: FARBER2ZWELT
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue &
Sales of electronic components, automation SHEETLE - BELAEN
parts and equipment Ki&ee 446,335 420,051
Sales of computer products, mobile HEBMEM - FHAEH R
accessories and other products and H M E S A K RIS URA
service income 156,941 125,836
603,276 545,887

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company (the “Executive Directors”). The
Executive Directors have reviewed the Group's internal reports in
order to assess the performance and allocate resources; they have
also determined the operating segments based on these reports.
The Executive Directors have further considered the business
from product perspective and have assessed the performance
of two main business segments: (i) Electronic Trading Business
— Distribution of electronic components, automation parts and
equipment; and (ii) Computer Business — Retail sales of computer
products, mobile accessories and other products, distribution of
computer products and provision of IT outsourcing and solution
services.

The Executive Directors have assessed the performance of the
operating segments based on segment results before corporate
expenses, finance costs and share of losses of associates.

ERAEEERAR - —F—NFEFEH

ITBRRERRECHERAARIAITE
Z(RTESF]) - BTEFEEHNA
SEZABRE  UFERRAESEER
R RENEREZSREEECLLED
B-ATESRERIRE-—TEEE
BRFHEMEZZEZBI B 2RI ()€
FTEEXE - 2HEFLM  88A
R &eR  REMERE - SEKEmMR - F
BEHEREMERTERH  DHEMK
= IR E AR E m KRR T RR
& o

HITEFERBHKRLERAX  BEX
ARFEIEHE ARBE 2D BEEER
EREDBRZRR -
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5. Wi KRB ER @)

The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2014 are as HE-Z-—NF=A=1+—HIEFEH
follows: FEEWT -
Electronic
Trading Computer
Business Business Unallocated Group
EFEE

XBE  BREEE RDE ES 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

FRET FET FEx FEx

Revenue U= 446,335 156,941 603,276
Segment results RECES 12,653 (1,420) (800) 10,433
Finance costs B & Rk AR = = (1,175) (1,175)
Share of losses of associates E(FEE &N B EE (16) - - (16)
Profit before income tax BT S5 AR R 9,242
Income tax expense (Note 9) FR8RiF 2

(FfF5E9) (3,911)
Profit for the year FREFR 5,331

Other segment items included in ~ Efh B AR & B2
the consolidated statementof X7 H¥EIEB M

profit or loss are as follows: o
Depreciation e 1,327 1,379
Provision for impairment of trade JEURE 5 ER BB

receivables B 276
Provision for slow-moving TEET E R

inventories 2,583
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continued) 5.
The segment results for the year ended 31st March 2013 are as

e Jo S TR ()
HE-T-=F=A=t+-BLFEH

follows: HEEEWNT -
Electronic
Trading Computer
Business Business  Unallocated Group
BEFEE
E Y K% rEH
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET THET AT
Revenue & 420,051 125,836 - 545,887
Segment results DL 9,086 347 (524) 8,909
Finance costs B & Al A - - (1,019) (1,019)
Share of (losses)/profits of FE(LE 2N a)
associates (E1B) %7 (144) 57 - (87)
Profit before income tax MRETBBLANRR 7,803
Income tax expense (Note 9) TS X
(FF5E9) (2,667)
Profit for the year FRER 5,136
Other segment items included in B {5 A 47 & 1828
the consolidated statement of RZODFEIER MW
profit or loss are as follows: o
Depreciation e 1,046 403 - 1,449
Provision for impairment of e E ZERFRE
trade receivables B 329 9 - 338
(Reversal of provision)/provision 85775 (B
for slow-moving inventories Bem) s (215) 61 - (154)

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, inventories, trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, and cash and bank balances. Unallocated assets
comprise current income tax recoverable and other receivables and

deposits.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities. Unallocated
liabilities comprise items such as other payables, current income
tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and short-term bank loans.

Additions to non-current assets comprise additions to property,
plant and equipment (Note 14) and intangible assets (Note 15).

ERAEEERAR - —B—NFEFRH

DREETRBREYE  BFER&E
BVEE T8 RBRRESEX  H
KB RZENARRE RRITHEER -
ANPBPEERENKRCMNAMGSHRE
b FEUGRIA R R4

THABERKEREBE - ROBAREER
EEMENRE  HAEREE &
FERIR B ERERRITERFERR -

RNEFRDEERRIEDNE BER
i (aE14) AR B B B (M 5E18) -
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5. W& R JE R 2

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2014 and R-E—NE=ZA=+—HZHBEEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as FEBEUARBEZBIEFEZAEIER
follows: BEENT :
Electronic
Trading Computer
Business Business Unallocated Group
EfEE

X®  BEEE RDE ES 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT THET THET TET

Assets % 271,265 324,542
Associates - 17

Total assets i 271,265 47,084 324,559
Liahilities = 75,522 6,532 142,129
Additions to non-current assets 7 TR 1,536 4,644 6,180
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31st March 2013 and RZF-—=F=A=+—HZHBEE
additions to non-current assets for the year then ended are as RBEEARBEZRILFEZREFR
follows: FEEWNT :
Electronic
Trading Computer
Business Business  Unallocated Group
BETEE

E A ES ADHE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THETT TET THET THETT

Assets BE 264,738 28,885 1,302 294,925
Associates /NS - - 68 68
Total assets EEHAE 264,738 28,885 1,370 294,993
Liabilities &81E 58,694 6,528 47,506 112,728
Additions to non-current assets SR EIETEIEE 679 1,174 - 1,853
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5. Revenue and Segment Information (continved) 5. Wizs X B& B @)
The Group’s revenue is generated mainly within Hong Kong, Asia REBZWEEZRER TAME -
Pacific, South Africa and Europe. Ik R BUNEE 4 -
2014 2013
—ZE—NF —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FAT
Revenue W
Hong Kong (country of domicile) HAGIMER) 355,078 319,586
Asia Pacific 95 A& 159,730 142,834
South Africa mIE 73,146 72,366
Europe B 1,538 2,069
Other countries HiER 13,784 9,032
603,276 545,887
Revenue is allocated based on the country in which the customer is Wiz B P EBRR A o
located.
2014 2013
—E—mF —=—=
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total assets EELE
Hong Kong B 230,827 205,883
Asia Pacific Eipe: 46,591 46,871
South Africa E2ES 46,931 40,869
324,349 293,623
Associates (Note 17) B A B (B EE17) 17 68
Unallocated assets ROKEE 193 1,302

324,559 294,993

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located.

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR
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Revenue and Segment Information (continued)

51

Wets e HE R 2)

2014 2013
—E-mF —E=F
HK$'000 HK$°000
T TAET

Additions to non-current assets REERBEE
Hong Kong e

Asia Pacific 25K M@
South Africa EE:

1,497
123
233

1,853

Additions to non-current assets is allocated based on where the
assets are located.

The total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
located in Hong Kong, Asia Pacific and South Africa are
approximately HK$5,305,000, HK$20,270,000, and HK$793,000
respectively (2013: approximately HK$1,844,000, HK$18,864,000
and HK$621,000 respectively).

Information about major customers
No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for
the years ended 31st March 2014 and 2013.

NEFRDEEREEMEMNE °

MRERE BAMENREIIEZERDE
ERE(2R T ERIN 5 54 45,305,000
7 7T+ 20,270,000 7% 7T %% 793,0005% 7T ( =
T—=%F: 5 R % A1844,000% T
18,864,000/ 7T 52.621,0007 7T ) °

FREEEFZER
HE_ZT—NEFR-ZFT—=ZF=A
=T—HIEEE #BEEPIGkEEE
10%BK A £
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6.

7.

Other Income and Gains

Management fee from an associate

(Note 30(a))
Management fee from third parties
Service fee from an associate (Note 30(a))

Commission income
Interest income from bank deposits

Interest income from an associate (Note 30(a))

Gain on a bargain purchase of a subsidiary

(Note 27)
Other income

Expenses by Nature

Costs of inventories expensed

Employee benefit expense (Note 13)

Depreciation of owned property,
plant and equipment

Provision for impairment of trade receivables

(included in general and administrative
expenses)
Provision/(reversal of provision) for slow-

moving inventories (included in cost of sales)
Operating lease rentals in respect of rented

premises

Auditors’ remuneration

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment (included in general and
administrative expenses)

Net foreign exchange gains (included in
general and administrative expenses)

6. H AU A R W s
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—B2-mfF —B—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
e —HEE R EZ
128 (MiFE30(a)) 12
KER=AZERE 953
KE—HEE R EZ
PR7% & (Fft530(a)) 12
AedA 123
HRITIF R B A 53
KE—HEE R EZ
F S WA (PH7E30(a)) 9
HERE—BMEAR
5 Woas (PR7E27) -
EHAb YA 130
1,292
7. SHEH
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—B-mfF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
FERARAX 493,092 444,606
EERMAZ (MHF13) 60,029 58,073
BEWE  HELRBITE
2,706 1,449
FEWE 5 AR FURE R
(BEtA—M K
THERER) 338
WIHFE RS (BERE)
(BEtASHERA) (154)
HAMEZEHERS
10,647
ZEMBE 1,050
HEME - BB ME
(W), B (B A
—MRITHRERER) 61
W F (B A—R
MITHRERER) (1,028)

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR
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8. Finance Costs 8. RILE A
2014 2013
—E—NEF —E—=F
HK$"000 HK$'000
FTHET FExT
Interest expense on short-term bank loans, HR—FRNEHEELH
wholly repayable within one year RITER 2 F BRI 1,019
9. Income Tax Expense 9. PR BLE L
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EENEHRBREBEFAREBELERRA
(2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or BB BT ERTB RN - #165%(=F
derived from Hong Kong for the year. Taxation on overseas profits — =% :16.5%) 2B REE < BINGFIZ
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year RIBIRF NG ERBRT - UAREEF
at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the CEEBERRER I RTE -
Group operates.
2014 2013
—ZE—mF —Z2—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Current income tax ENERFA1SHE
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —EBNEB 294
— Overseas taxation —BHNEIE 2,984
— Over provision in prior years —BEFERERE (603)
Deferred income tax (Note 23) RIEPTISHE (M3523) (8)
Income tax expense FTERiR X 2,667
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Income Tax Expense (continued)

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong Profits
Tax rate as follows:

B A5 BE Bl % ()
REBRFEMAERNZ BERERE
BRHEMBENE Y BRKERR - &
FanR -

2014 2013
—E-pmEF —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before income tax B FT 1S 5 B A 7,803
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate REEFEFFLR16.5%
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) ZE—=%F 1 165%)
FTEBIE 1,287
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMBEREEZ
operating in other countries MERARTRB R FE8 1.170
Tax losses of subsidiaries not recognized AR Z B A RBIA
[E518 732
Utilization of previously unrecognized tax B SRS R R Y FiIE
losses &8 (147)
QOver provision in prior years BEFERERE (603)
Others Hith 228
Income tax expense FreRipx 2,667

As the Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda,
it is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until 2035.

Mobicon Electronic Trading (Shenzhen) Limited (“MET"), being a
foreign investment enterprise established in the free trade zone of
Futian, Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), and
with a financial year end date falling on 31st December, is subject
to PRC enterprise income tax at the rate of 25%. No provision for
PRC enterprise income tax has been made as MET is still in a tax
loss position. MET is entitled to exemption from PRC enterprise
income tax for the first two profitable years commencing from the
year ended 31st December 2008 and a 50% reduction from normal
PRC enterprise income tax for the three years following. The
exemption ended as at the year ended 31st December 2013.

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

HRARR AR BREEMKL 2 EH
RAR BN B =RF IR RN
BREDA -

BRAETES ORI ERAE(TMET])
BRFREARLME(THE])FEIER
REBR L ZINEDLE  EURFEESF
#“HAT-_A=1—08  ZBERSB%HEXH
MR B EATER o HRMETILERB R
18 - B0 kP B 1 B TS A R B
H-METBBE-_ZENF+_-_A=+—
Bt SR mEERN T EER A
MR EMEMER WA REE=AF
R 250%— AP BEMEMSESH - B
HREEREBEE_E—=F+=-_A=+—
BIEFEE4 o
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10. Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of 10. A2 6] HE #5354 A\ WAL @5 A
the Company
The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt RN A @ FF A A 15 R R £9752,0007%
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of TT(ZZF—=4 : 2,339,000 ) ERNAR
approximately HK$752,000 (2013: HK$2,339,000). AV SRR EIE o
11. Earnings Per Share 11. BB EA
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended BE_Z-—NMF=A=+—HILFEZ
31st March 2014 is based on the Group’s profit attributable to FRERBADNEAR A EREE AR
equity holders of the Company of approximately HK$1,013,000 1l 255 B3 1 491,013,000 T (= F — =
(2013: HK$1,134,000) and on the weighted average number of F :1,134,0008 ) RFRNES BT EBRR
200,000,000 (2013: 200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during 2 hn#E ¥ 5 £1200,000,0000% (=T —=
the year. 200,000,0008% ) 5T &
There is no diluted earnings per share since the Company has no HRARFREBEE_T—NOFR=-ZT
dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended —=%=A=+—H ifﬁfilﬁﬁ[ﬁﬁ
31st March 2014 and 2013. BEBEETE 7 CBITERR - QI E
BREERA -
12. Dividends 12. BE
2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FHExT
Interim dividend paid of HK0.5 cent Bk EIR BB AR E @R
(2013: HK0.5 cent) per ordinary share 058 ((=ZZT—=4F :
0.5%80) 1,000
Proposed final dividend of HK0.5 cent BORARER B BRI A
(2013: HKO.5 cent) per ordinary share 058 (I(ZE—=4F :
0.5711L) 1,000
2,000

94

At a meeting held on 24th June 2013, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2013.

At a meeting held on 23rd June 2014, the directors of the Company
proposed a final dividend of HK0.5 cent per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31st March 2014. This proposed
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31st March 2014.

—=FRNA-THBARTZEE
$’&T§$§$ ARNEBEZE_ZT—=
R=+—HBLEFEZRBRESR
AR0.574 o

mﬁﬁkr%

&

—MHEARNRAZT=BRT2E8H
ARESEZRNEBEEZE=ZE—H
R=+—BLEFEZRBREFR
AR5 - IEIEHURARE T &R I
M BmMRINEBRNRE - HEE5AE
K_T ME=A=+—HLEFEZH
75k F RN o

%im#ﬁkr%
eI
%MH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B e M

13. Employee Benefit Expense 13. f& B Al p X

2014 2013
—2-F —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMET 55,259

Pension costs — defined contribution plans RIRE KA — EREE A2
(Note a) (MfzEa) 3.219
Reversal of provision for long-service payments & EAR7& 4 &7 @) (405)

Total employee benefit expense (including EERFIML B
directors’ remuneration) (BREEEHS) 60,029 58,073
Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BIRE—EBALKE#

(a)

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group
and its employees makes monthly contribution to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The employer's and
employees’ contribution is subject to a cap of monthly earnings of
HK$25,000 (2013: HK$25,000).

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd., a 90% owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Malaysia to join
the Employee Provident Fund Scheme (“the EPF Scheme”). The
EPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Malaysia. Under the EPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
12% and 8%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Employee Provident Fund Act 1991, and the Group
has no further obligations for the actual pension payments or
post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant
government agency is responsible for the pension obligation
payable to the retired employees.

ERAEEERAR - —F—NFEFEH

NEBE AHBEEELZHSEAHINE
AFELHE([RELE]) - BES
STEDEREEREGTE BB ETEAE
o REmESHE  AEEREES
BEAEEEBRA(EERBIEATES
TEER)5% T A M ZTEER - BE
KB E#Hz & AWA ER A25000% T
(ZZ—=4 : 25000/7T) °

Mobicon-Remote Electronic Sdn. Bhd. ( 7% %=
EHEEIN%LESEZHBAR)EAER
mEEEZH2EHEEARSHE(TA
Bastal]) - A8 EEERE
2 HBERATHRFEE - BREAES
e BEEREEAREERA(ERER
—hWN—FEERBERES)Z212%K8%
T A& 8K o BREFRAIN - RE
B 3 £ (7] B B B AR AR 1 FREGR IR
BREME—PEE - BERNTHKEZA
BERRKEEZTRKE -
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f B B R

13.

(a)

96

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Pensions — defined contribution plans (continued)
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, has arranged for its employees in Singapore to
join the Central Provident Fund Scheme (“the CPF Scheme”). The
CPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed by the
government of Singapore. Under the CPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees make monthly contribution to the scheme at
16% and 20%, respectively, of the employees’ earnings as defined
under the Central Provident Fund Act, and the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond its contributions. The relevant government agency
is responsible for the pension obligation payable to the retired
employees.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, the Group
contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans for its
employees in Mainland China as determined by the relevant local
governments, which are defined contribution plans. The Group
contributes approximately 8% to 17% of the basic salaries of its
employees in Mainland China and has no further obligations for
the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement plans
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

Pursuant to the Labor Pension Act of Republic of China, the Group
contributes its employees in Taiwan of no less than 6% of its
employees monthly wages to the employee’s individual pension
account. The Group's contributions are expensed as incurred.

13.

(a)

{& B & #I b X% )

MK 4 — e AL ER B ()
Mobicon-Remote Electronic Pte Ltd. ( 4N £
2EMBRAT)ERAFINEEE LS R
FRABEFE([RRAEREE]) -
FRAESFE T ERME KRGS - B
MEHFER - RIBRRABESFE
EEREEESAZEERA(EERSF
RRTERIER) 216% % 20%F B mZst &t
Koo BRUEFRBASN - AEB W EAE A H
ERRRENRIERERINN ZE—F
B - EEABRNKEAEAEERARNKES
SRR E o

RIBEFBERANERPIFTETER - AEEFL
TENMEE RBEREBRKGTEIEL
ZERTDAEREBIGETE - 255t
ERERETEE - REBRTENM
EBEELRFELBNE1TRIEL MK - T
FEI  AEBYEERAEEERR
RENKIBRARRBENZ2E—FEE -
BREBRKETERAEREMRAREE X
MRAKE °

BEPERB S TRES G - A%
BREaEREE ZEARKERAIEL
NORZAEEBEGATIE% 2B - K
SEZHRTIRELER S o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B e M

13. Employee Benefit Expense (continued) 13. RERAZ =)
(b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (b) B R AR P I
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the BHE-_ZT—NF=-A=+—HLFE"
year ended 31st March 2014 is set out below: FSEFERITHAH 2 MeHII0T :
Employer’s

Salaries, contributions
allowances to defined
and other  contribution

Name of director EEnE Fees benefits scheme Total
6] T SR K
e EE  FEMEHZ

e RHEMER BEMK &t

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000

TET TEx TET TEx

Executive directors HITES
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure ARl EE T
(chairman) (/)
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl mEER
(chief executive officer) (7TEAB%)
Mr. Hung Ying Fung HEESLE
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix HERREE
Mr. Manuel Arnaldo de Sousa Manuel Arnaldo de
Moutinho (Note (i) Sousa Moutinho
554 (B3EG)
Independent non-executive BIFHITES
directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman
potas
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFET
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric EKERELE
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13.

(b)

98

Employee Benefit Expense (continued)
Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)  (b)

13.

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31st March 2013 is set out below:

12 B & A BH 2 ()
EHEBREMEN S (E)
BHE-_Z—

EEMITHARS 2 &I T

“EZAZT-HLEFEES

(i) Appointed on 24th June 2013.

None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2013: Nil). No incentive payment for joining the
Group or compensation for loss of office was paid or payable to any
director during the year (2013: Nil).

(i)

Employer’s
Salaries, contributions
allowances to defined
and other  contribution
Name of director S0 Fees benefits scheme Total
MR B
e 2L FrEMERZ
we KEMEHN EEHK a&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FH&T FHET
Executive directors HITESE
Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure HalEigt
(chairman) (£/E) - 456 13 469
Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl B8ELLT
(chief executive officer) (TTECAEZE) - 840 15 855
Mr. Hung Ying Fung St - 546 15 561
Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix THEIR S - 546 15 561
Independent non-executive B FHITES
directors
Mr. Charles E. Chapman Charles E. Chapman
A 80 - - 80
Dr. Leung Wai Cheung REFE L 120 - - 120
Mr. Ku Wing Hong, Eric mKFREAE 80 - - 80
280 2,388 58 2,726
Note: Bt =

R-ZTE—=—FEA-+HBAERT-

FA - BEEFHEXF B HREEAH
B(ZF—=F: ) FR  HBECH
HENTEMNESFRERBMARE
B REABEREE(ZE—=F
&) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B e M

13. Employee Benefit Expense (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include five (2013: three) executive
directors whose emoluments are set out in Note 13(b) to the
financial statements. During the year ended 31st March 2013,
the emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals are as

13.

()

e B A B 2 )
LaREHAL

R AEBTLARSHEA L D AE
FE(ZE—=F: =Z£)RAESE  §
% M4 BRI S MEME13(0) - BE=
T-=#=A=+—-BLENENTH
To&ZEA+ZMEmT :

follows:
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Basic salaries and allowances HEAF S B2 1,882
Contributions to defined contribution scheme — EZEAL k=t 24t 2 15
1,897

The emoluments fell within the following band:

e N FIATEE :

Number of employees

BEAH
2014 2013
—E-pmEF —F=f

Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ1,000,000/5 7T
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ T &
1,500,000 7T

During the year, no emoluments were paid to the above individual
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2013: Nil).

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

FA-YEAEAEALINHESESR
SIREMAKRINARE B I 2 2R K
BERmE(CE—=F 1 &) -
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. W3 ~ Wb ikt
Group
rEE
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
properties  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEME GRAREE BLAERE RE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAT FAT FHT FAxT
At 1st April 2012 R-ZE——FWA—H
Cost or valuation BRAESEE 11,027 12,842 17,426 2,930 44,225
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (826) (11,955) (15,935) (2,680) (31,396)
Net book amount BREFE 10,201 887 1,491 250 12,829
Year ended 31st March 2013 BEZE—ZT—=%F
=A=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount FHEREFE 10,201 887 1,491 250 12,829
Exchange differences MEH =% 136 (12) (47) (41) 36
Additions NE - 1,230 537 86 1,853
Surplus on valuation [HEA 8,058 = = = 8,058
Disposals e = (55) (11) = (66)
Depreciation e (186) (588) (655) (20) (1,449)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 18,209 1,462 1,315 275 21,261
At 31st March 2013 R-Z2E—=%=8
=+—H
Cost or valuation EAERGEE 18,209 13,620 17,508 2,836 52,173
Accumulated depreciation 2 E - (12,158) (16,193) (2,561) (30,912)
Net book amount BRENFE 18,209 1,462 1,315 275 21,261
Year ended 31st March 2014 EBZE—ZT &
ZA=t+—BHLEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 18,209 1,462 1,315 275 21,261
Exchange differences PEH =58 (287) (9) (36) (31) (363)
Additions NE = 2,146 3,110 924 6,180
Surplus on revaluation EHAR 2,053 = = = 2,053
Disposals furfi=3 = = (4) (100) (104)
Acquisition of a subsidiary e iE — R E AR - - - 30 30
Depreciation e (328) (1,176) (994) (208) (2,706)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 19,647 2,423 3,391 890 26,351
At 31st March 2014 R-T—N&E
=A=+—H
Cost or valuation BRAES G E 19,647 15,404 20,065 2,538 57,654
Accumulated depreciation 2HrE - (12,981) (16,674) (1,648) (31,303)
Net book amount BREFE 19,647 2,423 3,391 890 26,351
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A B e M

14. Property, Plant And Equipment (continued)  14. 3 ~ )5 Kk fli o)
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31st March 2014 and 2013 LTHBEER-_T—NER-_ZT—=F=
of the above assets is as follows: RA=+—HzZEARERAEESITAT
2014 —E—MF
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
Properties  and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEVE BGRREE BLERRE AE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FERT FHET TERT
At cost KRAME
At valuation 1B
2013 —E-=F
Leasehold Furniture Office Motor
Properties and fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEME ERREE BAERE TE CEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FAT FHT FAT
At cost KAE - 13,620 17,508 2,836 33,964
At valuation {H1E 18,209 - - - 18,209
18,209 13,620 17,508 2,836 52,173

The leasehold properties are located outside Hong Kong and held
under a long-term lease.

At 31st March 2014, had the leasehold properties of the Group
been carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation, the
carrying values would have been approximately HK$9,808,000
(2013: HK$10,151,000).

At 31st March 2014, leasehold properties with an aggregate
net book amount of approximately HK$19,647,000 (2013:
HK$18,209,000) have been pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted by a bank to a subsidiary amounting to
approximately HK$4,143,000 (2013: HK$4,208,000) (Note 22).

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

HEMEUNEB R L IR KB O
5o

R-TB—NE=A=+—H  HAEH
ZHEMETIRRE LKA R RTIET
8 - RIBREE K = & 499,808,000% T (=
T —=4F :10,151,000/87T) °

R-T—MWME=F=+—H ' TEF
{E#E%84919,647,000/8 T (=T — =& :
18,209,000 70 ) 2 HE W ¥ E EHE R -
EA—MBRTET—EWERR AR
4,143,000/ 7L (== — = 4F : 4,208,000/
TL) 2 A TIRITRE 2 R A (fIRE22) -
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14.

(a)

102

Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
The fair value of the Group's leasehold properties at 31st March
2014 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out on
that date by Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd, independent
qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group. Suntec
Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd are members of Singapore Institute
of Surveyors and Valuers, and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations. The valuations were arrived at by reference to
market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties.

The Group's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Valuation basis

Valuation processes

The Group obtains independent valuations for its leasehold
properties at least annually. In the current year, the valuations
are performed by Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd, an
independent firm of professional valuer. At the end of each
reporting period, the directors update their assessment of the fair
value of each leasehold property, taking into account the most
recent independent valuations. The directors review the valuations
performed by Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd for financial
reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the directors and valuer at least annually, in line
with the Group’s annual report date.

At each financial year end the directors:

(i) Verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

(ii) Assess leasehold properties valuations movements when
compared to prior year valuation report; and

(iii) Hold discussions with the independent valuer.

14.

(a)

'WJ?I;; S ’ﬁf( )& iz)
$%l%ﬁﬁ¢%% A ‘—EEEH
=+—H 2 2FE TR & Suntec Real Estate
Consultants Pte Ltd (EEZNER I AR fH:E 2 B
EERBEXEMGAEMRZBETZAE
ﬁ‘ﬁ%nﬁ o Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte
Ld =T iR Em R hEMmGe e 8 -
EERMMRAEMERES BAGEE
BRMIBES FHEGENELER
BEMERRE 2 TiHREBERIEL o

AEEBRENSIBBEZ FHNIE
MECBREZ AR FESERZIEA
HEH -

FRN - F—F FoARE=HZEL
AR o

il {3 e

G EER
FEESZIBF-—ARHEBEENES

KBIEE - RAFERN - BBEE
F 8 32 B % & (& Bl 17 Suntec Real Estate
Consultants Pte Ltd#E 1T o P& (B3R & HAfE
HER EECRAESHSEREYD
ERATEZTE  EREFEREZE
SEE o EEHM B RS B HEMSuntec
Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd¥# 77 < {&{E °
i%i@ﬁ@ﬁmﬁ—”\lﬁf}’ﬂﬁﬂéﬂ»‘%
FIRA B RIEERT RS

REEHRFER EFF :

(i) REBYGERSTHAEEKR
BAE

) ERE R
MELLE N2 B8 &

(i) BB (HEMETTR
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AR B A

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued) 14.

Valuation basis (continued)

(b) Valuation techniques (b)
The fair value of the leasehold properties of the Group held for own
use as at 31st March 2014 are classified as Level 2 valuations.

The fair value of leasehold properties for own use is determined
using market comparison approach by reference to recent sales
price and rental of comparable properties on a price per square
feet basis using market data which is publicly available.

15. Intangible Assets 15.

I EN Y &L AE )
A e ()

B
WoZ-—mE=A=+—0 A£EHE
EEBAENLE ATERIEAS
— A -

RIFERZEENRZ AFETIERT
BHBOE KB ERHELRYETY
ZHEEBBRRESMAAMREZMES
BRRET I REBITEMSIREE

L& E

At 31st March 2013, 1st April 2013 and R-E—=F=R
31st March 2014 =t+-B =%
MA—HR-Z—IMF
=A=+-H
Cost MANE 132 4,836 5,568
Accumulated amortization and S EBERAE
impairment (732) (4,836) (5,568)
Net book amount REFE - - -
16. Investments in Subsidiaries 16. REBAFZRE
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (a) RHBAFRZRE

Unlisted investments, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note 16(b)) FEULH B A B ZRIE
(MF3E16(b)

FLEMERE - HAAE

67,297

32,951

100,248 102,188

ERBIEBERAT - —B—NEER
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Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st March 2014, all of which are
held indirectly by the Company (except for Mobicon (BVI) Limited

which is held directly by the Company), are as follows:

=L

A Plus Computer
Holdings Limited

A Plus 2 Computer
Limited

BESHBERBRAA

A Power Limited

EFLTIEERAA

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
SR AR 3L 3t B %
EEERER

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERXES
BRAT]

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

&8 BRAR]

Hong Kong, limited
liability Company
8 ARRAT

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FTEXBR

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
MREBET

REER

Trading and
distribution of
computer products
and mobile
accessories in
Hong Kong

REBEITER
2= o R e

Trading and
distribution of
computer products
and mobile
accessories in
Hong Kong

RBEBEITER
2 R R

R-Z—WNE=A=+—8 KBEAT
(& 7 Mobicon (BVI) Limited 32N A R E 45
B FREMBRRYHEARRMERS
B)FBWT

Particulars

of issued

share capital/ Percentage of
registered equity interest
capital held
ERITRAE PR A
R EARFE EZEI
Ordinary US$800,000 100%
& 3/%800,0003 7T

Ordinary HK$1,000 51%
EiBA%1,0007% 7T

Ordinary HK$500,000 100%
I 3% 500,000 7T

Annual Report 2014



Name

L

APower Holdings
Limited
REIKEBEFR AR

AP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited

AESI (HK) Limited
H—FRFE (FH)
AR AT

Langa Holdings
(Proprietary) Limited

—E-mEEH

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
o BR AL 3t B %
EEERER

Hong Kong, limited
liability Company
B ARAT

Republic of South
Africa, limited
liability company

FFEHFE
BRAA]

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
HE ARATF

Republic of South
Africa, limited
liability company

FFEAME
AR

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FEXEBR

Trading and
distribution of
computer products
and mobile
accessories in
Hong Kong

RBEBETER
2 on R R

\\\\\\

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
South Africa

REEETET
= TR

Provision of
information
technology services
in Hong Kong

REBREER
R IR

Investment holding in
South Africa

REFEEST
WEERK

Particulars

of issued
share capital/ Percentage of
registered equity interest
capital held
BRITRAE JIESTNES
HEMEARFE EmADL
Ordinary HK$500,000 60%
I 3% 500,000/ 7T
Ordinary South 51%
African Rand (Note (iii))
("ZAR") 100 (B3 Ciii)
EBAL100
MIERE
Ordinary HK$1,000 100%
EimAR1,0007% T
Ordinary ZAR 100 51%
EiBAZ100
FFEREF



Name

L

Mantech Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited

Maxfair Distribution
Limited
BERERAA]

MCU Power Limited
REBERAA

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
o RS2 b B
EEERER

Republic of South
Africa, limited
liability company

FAFEHAE -
BRATA

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
&% - BARAR]

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

FE - BARRA]

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FEXEBR
EEM R

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
South Africa

REEETET
=4 Ttk
BREEHEDIH

Trading and
distribution of
computer products
and mobile
accessories in
Hong Kong

REBETERE
m R FHEGE
EH5 8H

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Hong Kong

REBETET
=M Thk

BEREEEDH

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
EBITRE
AMERFEE

Ordinary ZAR 100
EmAx100
A FER S

Ordinary HK$100,
non-voting
deferred shares
HK$1,000,000
(Note (i))

T@EA1008TT
EREERITR
1,000,000 7T
gz

Ordinary
HK$1,000,000
T 3FA% 1,000,000

BT

Percentage of
equity interest
held

Fris R A
BmADL

51%

100%

100%
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Name

L

Milliard Devices Limited

KEIRTHBERAR]

Mobicon (BVI) Limited

Mobicon (Taiwan)
Limited

B AR
BRAT]

Mobicon Agent Limited
BRAKEARAF

—E-mEEH

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
o BR AL 3t B %
EEERER

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

FE  ARRT]

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERTES
BRAA]

Republic of China,
limited liability
company

RERE - BRAR]

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
H® - ARATA

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FEXEBR
EEME

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Hong Kong

REBETET
=M Tk

FEREEED

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REBEST
REERK

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Taiwan

REeEETET
= TRk
B EEHEDH

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Hong Kong

REBETET
=M TRk

BEREEEDH

Particulars

of issued
share capital/ Percentage of
registered equity interest
capital held
BRITRAE JIESTNES
HEMEARFE EmADL
Ordinary 70%
HK$1,000,000
& 38 1%1,000,000
BT
Ordinary US$10,000 100%
&3 10,000% 7T
Ordinary New Taiwan 100%
dollar 5,000,000
&3/ 15,000,000
etk
Ordinary HK$10,000 100%

T FAZ10,00076 7T



Name
78

Mobicon Electronic
Trading (Shenzhen)
Limited (Note (iii))

SRMEFE S

ORI BRAA
(B (i)

Mobicon Holdings
Limited

BRNEFEE
BRAT]

Mobicon International
Limited

Mobicon Malaysia
Limited

Mobicon-Mantech
Holdings Limited

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
o B 3L 3t B %
EEBERER

PRC, wholly-owned
foreign enterprise

R - SNEBERE

Hong Kong, limited
liability company

FE - ARRT]

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERUHS
BRAT]

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERUHS
BRAF]

British Virgin Islands,
limited liability
company

RERUHS
BRAT]

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FEXEBR
EEME

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
the PRC

RABEITET
=M Tk
BREEESH

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Hong Kong

MNEBETET
= Thk

BEREEEDH

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

MEBEST
REER

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

MEBEST
REER

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

MEBEST
REER

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
BRITRE
HEMERFE

Registered capital
HK$2,000,000

FMEAR
2,000,0007% 7T

Ordinary HK$10
B0 T

Ordinary US$100

@A 100 TT

Ordinary US$1
BT

Ordinary US$1,000

L HA%1,000=TT

Percentage of
equity interest
held

PR A
EZADL

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%
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Name

L

Mobicon-Remote
Electronic Pte Ltd.

Mobicon-Remote
Electronic Sdn. Bhd.

Mobicon-Remote
Electronics (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.

“E-NEER

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
o A S 3t B
EEEBRER

Republic of Singapore,
limited liability
company

FANSE HAE
BRAF]

Malaysia, limited
liability company

FHRPEE - BRAA]

Thailand, limited
liability company
Z=E - BRATA

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FEEXEBR

EE MR

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Singapore

RETINEITE
= Th Rk

BEREEEDH

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Malaysia

MR EETT
BEFEH -
NiEsEER
7 84

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
Thailand

MNEEETET
T TR
B EEHDH

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
BRITRAE
AMERFEE

Percentage of
equity interest
held

PR
@ADL

Ordinary 100%
Singaporean dollar
300,000

-3 1%300,000
N3 T

Ordinary Malaysian 90%
Ringgit 1,000,000
3/ 1% 1,000,000

BIRADME R

Ordinary Thai Baht 99.99%
3,000,000
& 3/ 3,000,000

ES 7S



Name
£

Partners 2 Limited

Suntronika (Proprietary)
Limited

Videocom Technology
(HK) Limited

FEIEE(FE)
BRAT]

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
o RS2 b B
EEERER

British Virgin Islands,

limited liability

company
EERURS

BERAT]

Republic of South
Africa, limited
liability company

FAFEAAE -
BRATA

Hong Kong,
limited liability
company

&8 BRAR]

Principal activities
and place of
operations
FEXEBR
EEM R

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REBETT
REERR

Trading and
distribution of
electronic parts,
components and
equipment in
South Africa

REEETET
= Ttk

Trading and
distribution of
computer products,
mobile accessories
and other products
in Hong Kong

REBEITER
Em - FHREMY
MHEMEREE

Particulars

of issued
share capital/
registered
capital
EBITRE
AMERFEE

Ordinary US$100
T RAR100ETT

Ordinary ZAR 100
EimAx100
PR

Ordinary HK$2
TR TT

Percentage of
equity interest
held

Fris R A
BmADL

100%

51%

100%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B e M

16.
(a)

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 16. RMBEAFZHEE#)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a) RHEBARZIREZE)

Notes: P E -

(i) The non-voting deferred shares are not owned by the Group. The shares (i) ERERRER N Y IERANEEES © Z
have no voting rights, are not entitled to dividend, and are not entitled to ERMIEREE  TEEZERE - B
any distributions upon winding up unless a sum of HK$10 billion had been RERREEZFEMDIR - BNE DR
distributed to the holders of ordinary shares. 10,000,000,0007% 7T T @Ak A A BIBROA ©

(i) The subsidiary has a financial year-end date falling on 31st December (i) RIBEHETERE - ZME QR 2K
in accordance with the local statutory requirements, which is not FEEHKERAT-_A=1t—0 BX&
coterminous with the Group. The consolidated financial statements of the BUT—5 - AEBZGAEMBRRTD
Group were prepared based on the financial statements of the subsidiary BEZMBARNEBEE-_T—NF=A
for the twelve months ended 31st March 2014. =+—RHIt AR ZHBHREREE

(iii) Incorporated on 19th November 2013. (i) RZE—=F+— AT NBFEMKZL -

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time EMBARREBEE=-Z—WMF=A

during the year ended 31st March 2014 (2013: Nil). =+ —BHIEFEANEAERBEERME

BIZEEERN(ZZ—=F : #) -

Material non-controlling interests BEAFZERER

The total non-controlling interests for the year is approximately AN 7 FE PR I #4858 4 4917,533,000

HK$17,533,000, of which approximately HK$16,390,000 is 7S Jr © E AR #916,390,000 75 T 5R OB R

for Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited K £ Ff} /&8

(“Mobicon-Mantech Group”). The non-controlling interests in A &) ([ Mobicon-Mantech&£ & |) o E fth fff B

respect of the other subsidiaries are not material. NAEZFEERE R DERX °

Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with material ABEEXIERER B FZ

non-controlling interests BHHE

Set out below are the summarized consolidated financial LA T 3 2t B /&8 /2 A]Mobicon-Mantech 5= [& 2

information for the subsidiaries, Mobicon-Mantech Group that has RAE BT ERBEZE © Mobicon-Mantechf< &

non-controlling interests that is material to the Group. BEEHASEME BEA 2 FERER -

Summarized consolidated statement of financial position FEMBRAREE

2014 2013
—E—mEF —E—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FHT

Current B
Assets BE 46,168 40,753
Liabilities BE (13,512) (11,827)
Total current net assets mENE R EAE 32,656 28,926

ERAEEERAR - —F—NFEFEH
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A B AR M

16.
(a)

112

Investments in Subsidiaries (continued) 16.

Investments in subsidiaries (continued) (a)
Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with material

non-controlling interests (continued)

Summarized consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

T Wi T 2 W 2 3% ()
TR I 26 ) 2 e (4

BEAKZRER (F)
ABERHFERER ZHELFZHT
BEHHZE(E)

REMBARRREE(E)

2014 2013
—E—NF —ZT—=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Non-current SR E

Assets BE

Liabilities =N

Total non-current net assets FERBEEFEAT
Net assets EEFE

Summarized consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

2014 2013

—E-mF =%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Revenue W5 72,576 71,884

Profit before income tax EERES =Tl 13,051 10,268

Income tax expense EREY (3,576) (2,936)

Profit for the year F R F 9,475 7,332

Other comprehensive expense Hi2mEMAY (4,069) (5,159)

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FREEUALEEE 5,406 2,173
Total comprehensive income allocated to D FIEFEREHERS 2

non-controlling interests EEONE 1,065

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

BR T IR A a2 LS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B e M

16. Investments in Subsidiaries (continued)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiaries with material
non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized consolidated statement of cash flows

16.

(a)

R HHR 2 W Z 3 & ()

TR 2 ) 2 R (48
EAFZEAS ()
ABEEASIERIF 2 W BL AN
EHEE ()

meReRERME
2014 2013
—E—NF ==
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FIT

Cash flows from operating activities s L IS RE

11,159 6,868
(3,202) (2,468)

Cash generated from operations BEELECRS

Overseas income tax paid EAEINRIS TR

Net cash generated from WEEBEE RS TR
operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities B EHEB RS FE

Net cash used in financing activities MEEHE AR IRS HEE

1,957 4,400
(751) (114)

(763) -

Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents R& KRB LZEWEINEE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FY7RERIRESEEY

6,443 4,286
1,937 2,815

(3,693) (5,164)

of the year

Exchange losses on cash and bank e RIRITHERZ EH IR
balances

Cash and cash equivalents at end of FEr B RBELZEY
the year

1,937

The information above is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.

(b) Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and not repayable within one year.

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

(b)

ERERSRELEEAR QR RS #HA
LB e

JRE I 2 vk I

R B R BRI AEIER 28 0H
ARN—FREE -
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A B AR M

17. Investments in Associates 17. RBEARZHEE
(a) Investments in associates (a) RBBEAFNZERE
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Beginning of the year F4) 139
Exchange differences MEH Z5 16
Share of losses FEE &1 (87)
End of the year Fx 68
Details of the associates of the Group as at 31st March 2014, AEBR-_Z—MF=A=+—HZ3¥
which are unlisted, are as follows: ETREERRFEBAT
Place of Principal activities Particulars Percentage of
incorporation and and place of of issued equity interest
Name kind of legal entity operations share held held
FEMR AR 3L ith B FEEBR e T FrEFIRAS
=18 EEERER EEMWR RADFH1E EEEIL
Create Tech Software Hong Kong, limited Design of computer Ordinary HK$150,000 30%
Systems Limited liability company software in I iMA%150,00078 7T
("Create Tech”) &% - BRAR] Hong Kong
MEIRIE B RAR] MEBEITEN
([#haI® ) B RE
Mabicon Electronic Thailand, limited Trading and Ordinary Thai Baht 49%
Supplies Co., Ltd. liability company distribution of 2,450,000
= - FRA electronic parts, 38 A% 2,450,000
components and B
equipment in
Thailand
NRBEEITE
5@156 7‘&1#&
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests WERAREEREE AR ERA K
in the associates. NBE-
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A B e M

17. Investments in Associates (continued) 17. RBBEAFZEE 2
(a) Investments in associates (continued) (a) RBBEARZHREE)
Summarized financial information for associates BE A ZHBEEREE
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually TBERZBE AR ELER
material
2014 2013
—ZE-F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
The Group's share of losses ANEE L E R (87)
The Group's share of other comprehensive  AR&EE E(GH b2 mE
(expense)/income (Fs2), WA 16
The Group's share of total comprehensive K& [E fE {5 2 Fd % 4258
expense (71)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s  REBRB L AT 2 w2 IF
interests in associates H#EE 68
Unrecognized share of loss of an associate RIEGRIENG — BT & A BB 1R
2014 2013
—E—MF ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
The unrecognized share of loss of FRRBEREN —HEE LA
an associate for the year 518 -
Cumulative share of loss of an associate ~ ZEHFE(L —RIBL A FEE -
(b) Amounts due to associates (b)  WEATIRE A wl sk IH
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-free and FEfREE AR REAERR  2EHA

repayable within one year.

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

R—FREE -
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A B AR M

18. Inventories
Inventories consist of electronic parts, components and equipment
and computer products, mobile accessories and other products.

19. Trade Receivables
The Group normally grants to its customers credit periods for sales
of goods ranging from 7 to 90 days. The aging analysis of the trade
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

18.

19.

w8
FEEEETEN  THRBSEREMK
ES - FREHRRBES -

HEE i S 5 Wk

ARE— RS THES 2 RS RSET
AZNATE - RERAMHE - BRE
FERZERAWWT :

Group

rEE
2014 2013
—B-mF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

58,417 57,567
1,017 2,248
2,052 2,655

996 1,283

0 to 60 days ZTZE60H

61 to 120 days 61£2120H

121 to 180 days 1212180H

181 to 365 days 1812365 H

Trade receivables FEURE 5 BRR

Less: provision for impairment of R FEWE SRR
trade receivables RE R

62,482 63,753

(879) (1,108)

61,603 62,645

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
fair values of trade receivables. There is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large
number of customers. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security in respect of its trade receivables.

116

RBEEMMAR ZEREERRSE
WE SRR AFE - ARAEERER
BARZ  WEREZIERFTELES
hEERR  AKEYEREEEES
R E T ERRERER -

Mobicon Group Limited - Annual Report 2014



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B R Fi

19. Trade Receivables (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

19.

JEWE 5 MRk )
REE Y R 5 SR A A T 5
B

2014 2013
—B-mE
HK$'000
TR

—E-=4F
HK$'000
FHxT

Hong Kong dollar BT

uSh i
Singaporean dollar o
Chinese Renminbi AR
Malaysian Ringgit R ARE R
New Taiwan dollar etk

South African Rand EES kS
Others HAth

33,586
15,266
380
979
3,912
360
8,115
47

62,645

As at 31st March 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$25,409,000 (2013: HK$29,092,000) were past due but not
impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for
whom there is no recent history of default. The aging analysis of

these trade receivables is as follows:

RZZ—WMFE=A=+—H  £925409,000
BT (= Z—=4 129,092,000/ 7T ) 2 EU
ZoERDBPEL ERE - ZSRK
Z 5 8RSk BT 2R 4R 4 R GE BGRRER ) %
LEIBRFER  c ZSRKEZERERZ

0 to 60 days TE60H
61 to 120 days 6121204
121 to 180 days 12121808
181 to 365 days 1812365H

R OTANT

Group

AEEH
2014 2013
—B-F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
22,190 24,101
994 1,352
2,055 2,641
170 998
25,409 29,092

As at 31st March 2014, none of trade receivables (2013:
HK$363,000) has been assigned to a bank with recourse as
collateral under factoring arrangement (Note 22).

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

RZZE—NE=ZA=+—H LTEEK
EZER(ZT—=4 : 363004 7T)E
BEANZHERT —RRITEREM
an o F A A R (HIEE22) -
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19. Trade Receivables (continued)
As at 31st March 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$276,000 (2013: HK$338,000) were impaired. The amount of
the provision was approximately HK$879,000 as at 31st March
2014 (2013: HK$1,108,000). The individually impaired receivables
mainly relate to a few customers, which are in unexpected difficult
economic situations. The aging analysis of these receivables is as

19.

FEW R 2 Wk )

N-TB—NE=A=+—H EKEH
BR 7 #9276,000/8 7T (== — =4F : 338,000
BIT)ERE R-E—NME=A=+—
B2z EESENA8790008T(ZE—=
£ 11,108,000/ 7T) - ERIE HIRRBEZE
Uk B R 3 2 R D ST ) DA TR R B R

follows: BrEPERM - LFRURIBAZERS
FaAT
2014 2013
—EB-pmE —F—=f
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
181 to 365 days 1812365H 338
Over 365 days B iE365H 770
1,108
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables EWE ZESRERE ST
are as follows:
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E2-mF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At beginning of the year F4) 1,020
Receivables written off as uncollectible il £ AT Uk Bl > R U R R (214)
Provision for impairment of trade JEURE 5 8RR E B
receivables 338
Exchange differences FE 3, =58 (36)
At end of the year FR 1,108
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A B e M

20. Cash and Bank Balances 20. B4 RSRAT 4 B
Group Company
REE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013

SE-NE —T-=F ZB-NF —T-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TAT TR TAET

41,257 35,854

Cash at bank and in hand WITRFHERS 8
Cash and bank balances of the Group include an amount RNEE 2 IR & KIRITAE R B IE4)7,548,000
of approximately HK$7,548,000 (2013: HK$4,110,000) was BIL(ZZT—=4F : 4,110,000 T) AAR
denominated in Renminbi and kept in Mainland China. The B DME R AR R Bl A 2 588 o Wi
conversion of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign ZEARBERRIINERIEZEECE
currencies and the remittance of these funds out of Mainland AR B A - 28 R B IR AR A4 B S
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange EHIHRASOERPTIRR
control promulgated by the PRC government.

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following RE RRITEBU T EETIE
currencies.
Group Company
rEE ENE|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE 2= =E-mE —E—=
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
FTExT FAT FExT FAT

Hong Kong dollar BT 12,287 8

usD =T 13,031 -

Singaporean dollar 103 T 390 -

Chinese Renminbi AR 7,548 -

Malaysian Ringgit B MRERE 2,768 -

New Taiwan dollar ek 539 -

South African Rand eSSk 4,687 -

Others HAth 7 -

41,257 35,854 8
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21. Trade Payables

The aging analysis of trade payables is as follows:

0 to 60 days

61 to 120 days
121 to 180 days
181 to 365 days

21. AR

ZTE60H 45,145
61=120H 1,436
1212180H 415
1812365H 1,036

48,032

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
usD
Singaporean dollar
Chinese Renminbi
Malaysian Ringgit
New Taiwan dollar
South African Rand
Others

¥IIE :

BT 6,998

e 34,584
AT 42
AR 433
BIRPEME R 916
ek 133
BESESS 4,844
Hitp 82

120
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B e M

22. Short-Term Bank Loans 22, HMWISITEX

All short-term bank loans are due within one year and denominated
in the following currencies:

FrAERMIRITERGR —FRE RN
THEEDIE :

Hong Kong dollar BT
usD E7T
Singaporean dollar b T

Group

AEEH
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
54,820 42,221
2,911 2,957
1,232 1,251
58,963 46,429

The effective interest rates of the short-term bank loans at the
reporting date range from approximately 2.21% to 2.96% (2013:
1.90% to 2.91%).

The Group's banking facilities are secured by the leasehold
properties of the Group (Note 14).

The Group obtained trade receivables factoring facility of
HK$5,000,000 (2013: HK$5,000,000). Under the facility, the Group
will receive with recourse from the bank advances representing
70% of the Group's trade receivables due from selected customers
within the factoring limit of HK$5,000,000 (2013: HK$5,000,000)
(less service and monthly discounting charges). As at 31st March
2014, the Group had not utilized the factoring facility (2013:
HK$252,000).

ERAEEERAR - —F—NFEFEH

REREBH - BRHBRTERZERF =X
NF#4221%52.96%( —F—=4F : 1.90%
%£291%) °

AEBZRITEEEAREEZAE
5 (FRE14) fEHEAR

AEERSERESERRGRE
5,000,000/ 7t ( == — = 4 : 5,000,000/
TL) o RBEZEE - AREFERH AR
RIEZIRITRAR - HERARE B EYUIE
ERFZEWE SERRT0%  RISPREE
#45,000,0007% 7T ( == — = 4 : 5,000,000
BT (R EEANZEER) - KT
—ME=A=+—0 XEELEHH
REEBE(ZF—=4 : 252,00087T) °
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22 N\
ey

AR i

23. Deferred Income Tax Liabilities
Deferred income tax is calculated in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of 16.5%

24.

122

(2013: 16.5%).

The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is as

follows:

Beginning of the year

Exchange differences

Recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss

End of the year

The deferred income tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated

tax depreciation.

As at 31st March 2014, the Group had unrecognized deferred

income tax asset, primarily representing the tax effect of
cumulative tax losses (subject to the approval of the relevant tax
authorities), amounting to approximately HK$11,240,000 (2013:

HK$7,369,000), which have no expiry date.

Share Capital

Authorized:
Shares of HK$0.10 each

Issued and fully paid:
Shares of HK$0.10 each

23. EAE P S B A
FEFMSHIEABEEIREREEUNEE
T &165% (=T — =4 : 16.5% ) FBH
% o
REMBHBEREZEHNT :
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—EB-pmE —F—=f
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
F1) 48
i =% -
PERA B R PR
(8)
FIR 40
BEMBHABERE MBRISITE -
RZBE-—NE=A=+—0 K&£EEx
RIERIELE TS & E 4 /511,240,00078
TT(ZZE—=4 :7369,000087T) FEA
R HEEE(AFEERSHEAES
AEE)ZRMISHE  WEERBE -
24, AR
2014 2013
—F-mEF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
SETE
R EE00E T2 EimAk 200,000 200,000
ERITRER
FREEE00E T2 EimAk 20,000 20,000
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25. Reserves 25. [kt
Company
RAE]
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus profits Total
B E MABER BERA &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT BT T T
(Note)
(BR3E)
Balance at 1st April 2012 N-ZZT——4F
MA—Bz&H% 16,706 67,097 3,122 86,925
Profit for the year F A% F) - - 2,339 2,339
Dividends A8 - - (3,000) (3,000)
Balance at RZE—=%F
31st March 2013 =A=+—H
2 EERR 16,706 67,097 2,461 86,264
Balance at 1st April 2013 RIE—=4F
mA—RZ&H% 16,706 67,097 2,461 86,264
Profit for the year F AR - - 752 752
Dividends 8= - - (2,000) (2,000)
Balance at R-E—NE
31st March 2014 =A=+—8H
k=12 16,706 67,097 1,213 85,016
Representing: RE :
2014 final dividend —“E-NFRERE 1,000
Others Hih 213
1,213
Note: Bt &

(i)

Contributed surplus represents the difference between the nominal value
of the ordinary shares issued by the Company and the net asset value

of subsidiaries acquired through exchanges of shares pursuant to the
reorganization which took place on 18th April 2001.

ERBEEERLAT - —B—NEER

BABBEARAMBETEBRZE
B SBREBE_ZTT-FNA+\BET
ZERERBBENASHEB AR CEEF
BZE% -
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26. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of 26. ZESHARBEMEE

Cash Flows
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated BRAGEHRANEN BECEEBEE RS
from operations: FREE 2 HER
2014 2013
—Z—mF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Profit before income tax R PR 1S 25 AR A 7,803
Adjustments for: LUTREE 2%
— Depreciation of property, plant and —W¥E - BEMZETE
equipment 1,449
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HEYE  BEREE(K
plant and equipment =),/ 518 61
— Interest income — R B U A (62)
— Interest expense —HEFXZ 1,019
— Share of losses of associates — FE(RE & AR B 87
Gain from a bargain purchase of HEEE BB A RPTERE
a subsidiary (861) -
Changes in working capital: LiEEeEE
— Inventories =78 (14,373) 7,405
— Trade receivables — EUE 5 IR 1,766 4,429
— Other receivables and deposits —HibEWFIERIES (5,496) (685)
— Trade payables —ERE SRR 10,563 (4,417)
— Other payables — B A RIE 5,236 (7,695)
Net cash generated from operations B EESE 2 ISR 9,639 9,394
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27. Business Combinations 27.

In April 2013, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
in Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited (“Suntronika”) and the
shareholder’s loan to Suntronika of ZAR 689,000 (equivalent to
HK$525,000) at a cash consideration of ZAR 1,168,000 (equivalent
to HK$891,000).

SEW A bF

RZZE—=ZFNWA  AEBKE
Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited ([ Suntronika | )
& 8 P& 7N #E 2§ K Suntronika % B B &
689,000/ Jk & 45 (18 & #2525,000/%8 7T ) -
4 KB 51,168,000 FERE & (HE R
891,000/ 7T) °

Consideration transferred R A
HK$'000
FAET
Cash He 891

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities attributable

AW B BB - Suntronika B% 3R F& 15 AT 34 A

to the shareholders of Suntronika as at its date of acquisition is as BERBEAFERT :
follows:
HK$'000
FHIT
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 30
Inventories =8 934
Trade receivables e E R 724
Other receivables and deposits HEMER I RiRE 472
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTH R 306
Trade payables FETE 5 B (503)
Other payables H b e 30E (211)
Shareholder’s loan R R E (525)
1,227
Gain on a bargain purchase arising on acquisition W it s 2k 2 1 I W A
HK$'000
T
Total consideration transferred DEBRELRE 891
Less: Consideration in relation to the acquisition of B A B EE Suntronika B R B R
shareholder’s loan of Suntronika ZHRE (525)
Consideration for acquisition of Suntronika 1z B Suntronika 2 {8 366
Less: Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired B MBS HBFEEZATE (1,227
(861)

ERAEEERAR - —F—NFEFEH
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Business Combinations (continued)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

e 3 AL )

W B A 2 BB U R

HK$'000

TFHT

Cash consideration paid ERESRE 891
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired W BRSNS RIS SEY (306)
585

Acquisition-related costs amounting to ZAR 25,000 (equivalent to
HK$19,000) have been excluded from the consideration transferred
and have been recognized as an expense in the current year,
within the “general and administrative expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

After re-assessment by the management of the Group, the Group
recognized a gain on a bargain purchase of HK$861,000 because
the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired exceeded the
purchase consideration.

The fair value of trade receivables were approximately
HK$724,000. The gross contractual amount for trade receivables
due were approximately HK$756,000, of which approximately
HK$32,000 were expected to be uncollectible.

Had the business combination been effected on 1st April 2013,
the revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$603,276,000, and the profit for the year would have been
approximately HK$5,331,000. The proforma financial information is
for illustration purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of
revenue and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been completed on 1st April 2013 nor is it intended to be a
projection of future profits.

U B8 4R B AK 7N 25,000 B3 FE RS 4 (AE B R
19,0007 0) A EEBRESIR - AR
FEGEBEER[—RETHREEEZA]
B NHERBRAY

CEANEBERBEFTHE  AEEHE
Ra5 B E 58610008 7T © BRE AU
BEIEUHEMNFEEATFTEBEKER
Eo

EWE 5 RN 2R FEEL AT24,000 %
T BRZEREBESGERERENBEN A
756,000 7T - E A 4932,0007 T B E3 R AT
e

WEBEAHNR_T—=FNA—HBXE
B AEE 2 U E FE & #)603,276,000 7
JC + M4 A% 1 Bl FE 4 #95,331,0008 7T ©
HEVBERMERZZE 2R KU —F
RMEFEHR-_ZTE—=FNA—H=E
BZBRT  AEEEERER 2L
W R ¥E - BIMER ETERAIRAT
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28.

29.

Commitments 28. R
Operating lease commitments — where the Group is the lessee REMA RYE — AL E LR
As at 31st March 2014, the Group had future aggregate minimum R-ZE—NFEF=A=+—H ' A&EEH
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect HEMFEZ P REEEEHON BERE
of rented premises as follows: NEERENRETENAT
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
No later than one year —FE R 19,186 8,027
Later than one year and no later than —FRERAFR
five years 23,533 3,355
42,7119 11,382
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group KEHHAREBEEAEERE TZTEE
for certain of its retail outlets, office and warehouses. Leases HoMAEREEEMZEE - HHZ
are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from 1 to 3 BAIEME - FE=F1% HerH
years. HAgFTE -
The Company had no commitments under operating leases as at R-ZFE-—OE=A=1t—H  AQFAL
31st March 2014 (2013: Nil). BICBTAN TN 2 AE(ZE—=F 1 ) o
Corporate Guarantee 29. AwElBER
Company
AT
2014 2013
—E—NEF —E—=F
HK$"000 HK$'000
T FiIT
Corporate guarantees provided by RARFLH B AR ZRTT
the Company in respect of banking EEEmMEEY ATER
facilities of subsidiaries 84,100 69,100

As at 31st March 2014, the amount of banking facilities used
by the subsidiaries and covered by the Company’s corporate
guarantees amounted to approximately HK$54,820,000 (2013:
HK$42,221,000). In the opinion of the directors, no material
liabilities will arise from the above corporate guarantees which
arose in the ordinary course of business and the fair values of the
corporate guarantees granted by the Company are immaterial.

ERAEEERAR - —F—NFEFEH

RZZE—NEF=A=+—H KB
EEAEHAR Tk{ﬁ/‘ﬂfﬁ{%ﬁﬁﬁ
=B 49548200008 0 (=T — =4 ¢
42,221,000%7T) - EERE - tsma%‘
ENERPEA AT ERTSERSE
REBE  BAREREZAFTERZA
FEITEK °
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30. Related Party Transactions 30. BABEANLZRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial R EHEEMBERRE MO ARES
statements, the Group had the following significant related party SN AEBERFEARNEATEABEE AL
transactions during the year: R
Particulars of significant transactions between the Group and  (a) AREBEEBERATETZCERAR GG
related parties are summarized below: B
2014 2013
—2-mF —T-=F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bisx FHET FHT
Management fee received from

an associate EHEB—EMERRICERE (i) 12
Service fee received from an associate BB —EEE AR ZREE (il 12
Interest income received from BB —HEE AR

an associate FEUA 9
Maintenance fee paid to an associate EXf—EBMLERRZHER (i) an
Rentals paid/payable to M-Bar Limited B3,/ FE S tM-Bar Limited 2

fiZa (iv), (viii) 3,876
Rentals paid/payable to UGD Property B% 14,/ FEXHUGD Property
(Proprietary) Limited ("UGD Property”) (Proprietary) Limited ([UGD
Property ) 2 & (v), (viii) 1,119
Rentals paid/payable to Tiger Moth Trading 2 32,/ €57 4 Tiger Moth

No.53 (Proprietary) Trading No.53 (Proprietary)

Limited “Tiger Moth”) Limited([ Tiger Moth]) 2784 (v), (viii) 306
Sales to Clover Display Limited HETRERBARADF {vil, (viii) 588
Purchases from Clover Display Limited NEERSERATEE (vi) 726
Commission income received from BUBEEREERARZ

Clover Display Limited VESL N (vii) 123
Consultancy fee paid to a related company =% N —EEHAT 2 EEE (ix) 385

128

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
from an associate

Sales of property, plant and equipment to
an associate

m—REEARBENE
HENE BERRET

_Faﬁﬂﬁ%/&ﬁj

(x)

(xi)
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30. Related Party Transactions (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Management fee was received from an associate, Create Tech Software
Systems Limited at a fixed monthly rate of HK$1,000 for the period from 1st
April 2013 to 31st July 2013 and HK$11,000 for the period from 1st August
2013 to 31st March 2014 respectively (2013: at a fixed monthly rate of
HK$1,000) for use and lease of facilities of the Group.

Service fee was received from an associate, Create Tech Software
Systems Limited at a fixed rate of HK$1,000 per month for the period from
1st April 2013 to 31st July 2013 (2013: HK$1,000 per month) for providing
online-marketing related service.

Maintenance fee was paid to an associate, Create Tech Software Systems
Limited at a fixed rate of HK$41,992 per month for the year ended 31st
March 2014 (2013: HK$39,258 per month) for providing maintenance of the
accounting system.

M-Bar Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Mobicon Electronic
Supplies Company Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim
Fung, Measure (30%), Ms. Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung
(20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial
shareholders of the Company. The lease agreements with M-Bar Limited
were entered into at terms agreed between the contracting parties.

UGD Property and Tiger Moth are companies wholly-owned by Mr.
Moutinho, a director of AP Electronics (Proprietary) Limited, Langa
Holdings (Proprietary) Limited, Mantech Electronics, Mobicon International
Limited, Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited and Suntronika (Proprietary)
Limited and owns 49% interest in Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited. The
lease agreements with UGD Property and Tiger Moth were entered into at
terms agreed between the contracting parties.

Clover Display Limited is subsidiary of A Plus Computer Shop Limited
which is beneficially owned by Dr. Hung Kim Fung, Measure (30%), Ms.
Yeung Man Yi, Beryl (30%), Mr. Hung Ying Fung (20%) and Mr. Yeung Kwok
Leung, Allix (20%), directors and substantial shareholders of the Company.
Sales to and purchases from Clover Display Limited were conducted in the
normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

Commission income received from Clover Display Limited was conducted in
the normal course of business at terms as agreed between the contracting
parties.

These transactions constituted continuing connected transactions as
defined in the Listing Rules.

ERBEEERLAT - —B—NEER

i Wk N\ 32 5

FaE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

RE—HEERRFAIRERERRAA
ZEBEBDNREARANEERBREZE
HEA R-_ZT—=FWA—HE=Z%

—=%tA=+—HHHEAS A1,000
BT MR=ZFE—=F/\A—H&E=F
—ME=ZA=+—HEMAF A11,000%
T(ZZE—=%: EEEAET A1,000%
JT) e

R-B—=FNA—HE_ZT—=F+
A=+—BIHMA - RE —FHBERF

FARBRGERARZREE RS
M EEEBRRE KRz EEERE A
1,000 (= —=4 : §A1,00087T) °

REBE=_T—NF=A=1+— Eliir‘
B XM E R R AR EHEERA
2#&‘(\%%%%&@E%%W\M%WZE
BERTANIEBTL(ZE—=4: §A
39,258/87T) °

M-Bar Limited R B RMEFER AR Z 2
BEMBAR - BREIETERARHEAEARA
ﬁi%&i%ﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬁﬁﬂsn% - 15
R (30%) ~ HEE 2 5 4 (20%) R 15
BRI A(20%)E 2= A © BAM-Bar Limited 7]
N 2 SRR IVIRETAE 1B e 2 6RET

VAR

UGD Property % Tiger Moth¥5 & Moutinho 5t 4 2
EEA 2 A7) Moutinho4E 4 AAP Electronics
(Proprietary) Limited ~ Langa Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited + Mantech Electronics  ~ Mobicon
International Limited ~ Mobicon-Mantech Holdings
Limited & Suntronika (Proprietary) Limited 2 &35
4 55 Mobicon-Mantech Holdings Limited 49%7%
25 © EAUGD Property X2 Tiger Moth&T 32 2 FH & 173
BIRETAIE T E 2 IGERATAL

SEBRRERATDRBEEREER
RRAZHEBAR - EEEMEBRA
AAARAEERFERF AR EEF L
(30%) + 15 BiE 22 1-(30%) ~ HEZE L AE
(20%) R 15 B R ST 4 (20%) B BB A © B
BRBERARETZHERRERS
AR —REBBEPRITNEHIHEZ
ERFRELT ©

REERRERARBERZAESKRAT
E—REBBIZPIRITNE T BIEZ 5
AT

EZ%X%%fﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁiZ%%Eﬁ
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30.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

130

Related Party Transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

For the year ended 31st March 2013, the Company paid consultancy fee
at a fixed rate of approximately HK$35,000 per month for the period from
1st April 2012 to 28th February 2013 totaling HK$385,000 to Konrise
International Limited which is a company beneficially owned by the
director of the Group's subsidiaries.

Purchases of property, plant and equipment from an associate, Create Tech
Software Systems Limited was conducted in the normal course of business
at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

Sales of property, plant and equipment to an associate, Create Tech
Software Systems Limited was conducted in the normal course of business
at terms as agreed between the contracting parties.

Included in other receivables and deposits of the Group as at
31st March 2014 were rental deposits paid to M-Bar Limited of
approximately HK$654,000 (2013: HK$636,000).

Included in other payables of the Group were amount due to a
minority shareholder of a subsidiary of approximately HK$971,000
(2013: HK$971,000). The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Included in other payables of the Group were amount due to a
director of approximately HK$2,181,000 (2013: HK$2,499,000). The
amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Key management compensation

30.

(a)

(e)

B Wk N\ 22 5

MRt - (4)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

BE_T-—=6=ZA=t+—BLEE "
ARNER=ZZE—Z—FMA—HE=Z
— = A=+ N \EBHEMSARAEE
MEARESESES 2R EERR
BRA R X EER & £935,0008 T - 488
74385,00075 7T °

A — [ B i A R BB B IR 2 R BE
BEME BMERREBEHVE-REBHBR
PIRETHI & TT I TE 2 R BT

HEME BEERET —HEZEATF
MAREGERARDE - REBBE
RIRRT KR TT 1 2 IR AETT -

R-FE-WE=A=+—R  A%H
H 8 W SR E R iR € B HE B X 13 M-Bar
Limited 2 #8 & £ % #7654,0007%8 ;T (=&
—=%F : 636,00087T) °

7N £ (B JE S SR IE B I RS — A B
NaEl— /LB ERIAL971,000%8 T (=
T— =4 :971,000/7T) - BEARIBLAE
B BB RBREREE -

AEEBHEMENRBEREEN—RES
ZFRIEHA2181,0008 (= — =F ¢
2,499,000 7C) - EANEAEER - &
BRBREREE -

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

EHIEEEA
BERUZ AR

FEEBRASME
Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
3,974
58
4,032

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in Note 13(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

EEMe o E— PHBEANKREM B R
FRMIFE13(b)
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AR 2L

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Results

Revenue W zs

Profit before income tax BR P45 0 A A
Income tax expense s RiB 2

Profit for the year FREH
Attributable to: A

Equity holders of the Company ARAIERFAA
Non-controlling interests IR

BERAEEERLR - —F—HFFR

2014
—z-mE
HK$'000
TR

603,276

9,242
(3,911)

5,331

AEEREAEMBFREZERMREREER

BEBMNT
E ¥
Year ended 31st March
BZE=A=1+—HLEFE
2013 2012 2011 2010
—T—=F ZZ——%F —T——F ZT-IZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBIL FHBT FHET FHBIT
545,887 588,628 739,832 717,197
7,803 6,557 18,964 6,827
(2,667) (2,593) (4,290) (3,331)
5,136 3,964 14,674 3,496
1,134 743 11,591 1,843
4,002 3,221 3,083 1,653
5,136 3,964 14,674 3,496
131



Financial Summary

i e
Assets and Liabilities & Kk afE
As at 31st March
R=A=+—H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
“E-NE —T-=F —T-—=F ZZT——F ZT-ITF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERx FHET FHBT FHBIL FHBIL
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERR 21,261 12,829 13,400 12,804
Intangible assets mEE = - - - _
Investments in associates REEE AR ZIRE 17 68 1,079 1,013 441
Current assets REEE 298,191 273,664 288,685 301,954 304,540
Total assets BEHE 324,559 294,993 302,593 316,367 317,785
Current liabilities mEEE (142,129) (112,688) (123,598) (125,066) (136,041)
Net current assets REBEEFE 156,062 160,976 165,087 176,888 168,499
Total assets less BEEABERABER
current liabilities 182,430 182,305 178,995 191,301 181,744
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFREHaE (40) (48) (246) (162)
Net assets EERE 182,430 182,265 178,947 191,055 181,582
Capital and reserves attributable Z&AREZREEA
to the equity holders of the ELEERRRE
Company
Share capital (e 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000
Reserves i 144,897 146,263 142,655 150,619 143,045
164,897 166,263 162,655 170,619 163,045
Non-controlling interests R ES 17,533 16,002 16,292 20,436 18,537
Total equity A 182.430 182,265 178,947 191,055 181,582
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